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Message from the CEO
It is my pleasure to provide you, our shareholders and stakeholders, with a brief update on the
activities and results of ViveRE Communities Inc. for the 2019 fiscal year and early on in 2020. 2019
was the first full year of operations for the Company. During the year our total assets increased from
$5.4 million to $18.5 million through the acquisition of 3 multi-residential properties, increasing our
total rental units from 31 to 119. This growth has continued in 2020 with the addition of 4 more
properties with 144 rental units valued at $21 million. We now have 8 properties, 263 units, with an
asset value in excess of $40 million, located in New Brunswick and Ontario.

All of the properties acquired to date fit our business model. They are low and mid-rise properties in
bedroom communities; newer construction with quality finishes and amenities including fitness
centers, libraries and community rooms; located in close proximity to healthcare and shopping; on
transportation routes and are attractive to the 55+ demographic. The Our Properties section of this
report provides more information and details on our portfolio.

We have also demonstrated our ability to source deals. The pipeline of properties that fully meet our
acquisition criteria supports our acquisition target for 2020. This deal flow is primarily non brokered
properties, much like those in our current portfolio, which have not been actively managed and
present the opportunity to create value through moving in place rents to market levels and proactively
managing costs. In addition, we are now reaching the scale required to aggressively develop our
offering of third-party services.

Since our initial change of business transaction in August 2018 we have built a solid foundation to
grow our successful real estate business. While the Covid 19 pandemic has significantly impacted the
economy and capital markets, we operate in a market sector with a resident demographic that is
resilient. Operating results to date have remained positive. The future for ViveRE Communities Inc.
looks bright indeed. We are very appreciative of your support and are looking forward to continued
growth and success in 2020 and beyond.
Sincerely,
Mike Anaka
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Covid-19 Response
The world as we knew it changed in late 2019. The emergence of COVID-19 and the resulting
pandemic that spread throughout the world in early 2020 has altered the way we currently live, work
and socialize in ways we could not have imagined.
We responded with a focus on the safety of our residents, as the world moved into a period of
lockdown. We have changed the way we clean our properties, limited access for visitors and closed
our amenity spaces. We installed hand sanitizing stations and provided masks as they became
available. Routine maintenance has been restricted and property showings have been virtual when
possible. We would like to extend our gratitude to our property managers and the frontline staff for
their dedication and concern for our residents as we operate in these uncharted waters.
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Our Company
About ViveRE Communities Inc.
ViveRE owns community-focused multi-unit residential buildings targeted to residents aged 55 years
and older. To date, property management is handled by third party providers Novacorp Properties,
Prism Property Managers and Irongate Leasing who deliver operating excellence on a contract basis.
Property management will eventually be brought in-house as we continue to scale the business and
our resources to support such a change. As we grow, ViveRE intends to partner with third party service
providers to introduce a menu of services that will enhance the living experience of its residents.
Today’s active 55+ individual or family is interested in community and independence. They seek
properties that attract like-minded residents and value-added services. The Corporation’s target
tenant desires a lifestyle that eliminates the work and risk associated with a single-family home at a
stage when the resident desires convenience and freedom. The 55+ demographic includes
approximately 10 million Canadians today.
As part of its service platform, ViveRE intends to introduce third party supplied services such as
housekeeping, wellness checks, pet care, grocery and dry-cleaning delivery, information technology
support, mobility vehicle parking, storage and other services to enhance the lives of its residents.
Revenue sharing and rebates from these services has the potential to enhance the profitability of our
properties beyond a traditional rental-only revenue model. In essence, a condo or hospitality style
level of service is part of the Corporation’s business plan. Third party providers will be chosen with this
level of service in mind.
Community building amenities are also planned for the Corporation’s properties and its future
acquisitions. Workshops and community gardens will be added as space and resources allow. The
Corporation seeks to add high value; low capital cost amenities wherever possible.
ViveRE believes that the target resident base of 55+ will deliver lower unit turnover and keep capital
and operating costs down through a lighter use of the premises. Currently, the Corporation is able to
directly control approximately 40% of operating expenses, including labour costs, repairs,
maintenance and administrative expenses. The remaining operating costs, including utility and energy
costs, and property taxes, are passive costs for the Corporation. ViveRE’s apartments are currently
heated with electricity and are individually metered.
Like other real estate companies, ViveRE has a highly scalable business model where a small team can
drive a large number of transactions. As such, ViveRE expects to continue to operate in the near term
with a hands-on board of directors and its current highly- focused management team. The
Corporation plans to continue executing on its strategy of aggressively acquiring additional properties
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that offer attractive cash-on cash returns. The Corporation believes that its highly focused growth
strategy and careful attention to its shareholders will help create a successful publicly listed real estate
company.
As a company with eight properties, the management team will remain lean and reflective of the
available funds to support such costs. The expected addition of the 10 properties currently under
agreement and a number of other potential opportunities will allow the team to be broadened and
enhanced as required.
The Corporation intends to acquire multi-family rental properties in bedroom communities, focusing
on well-leased properties that are new, recently built or recently refurbished. These communities
across the country, which larger real estate investors tend to overlook, fit ViveRE’s business model.
With less competition for product, the Corporation believes that these markets will deliver a greater
spread between cost of capital and capitalized income (cap rate) therefore delivering greater potential
for profitability. ViveRE’s management team has worked hard to develop relationships with smaller,
independent local developers whose properties often have a definable gap between in-place and
market rents. The Corporation has developed a set of screens to quickly determine whether an
opportunity fits the business model.
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Demographics are Changing the Apartment
Rental Markets
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Our Properties
41 and 50 Noel Avenue, Saint John, NB
These properties, 31 and 42 units were constructed in 2015 and 2016
and are situated in the Saint John bedroom community of
Milledgeville. Located at the top of a hill, with a scenic view of the
Saint John and Kennebecasis Rivers, they are close to Saint John
Regional Hospital, golf, boating and on a public transit line. With a
resident base that is primarily 55+, these properties are ideally suited
to the ViveRE “NORC” portfolio. Large and spacious “condo quality
finish” apartments suit those who are downsizing from a single-family
home.
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Our Properties
542 and 550 Ryan Street, Moncton, NB
These two identical 23-unit buildings, located in Moncton North,
were constructed in 2012. The high-quality build is ideally suited
to the 55+ resident. With an average resident age of 71, these
buildings closely fit the “NORC” profile. Located at a transit stop,
within 6 km of Moncton Hospital and less than 3 km to shopping
they offer a relaxed lifestyle close to everything required by the
active retired or soon to be retired resident.
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Our Properties – 2020
150 and 154 Lewisville Road, Moncton, NB
These buildings, 55 and 34 units, constructed in 2001 and 2003 are ideally suited for the “NORC”
resident. Close to Champlain Mall, Moncton Hospital and Georges-Dumont Hospital, they fit the
lifestyle of the active and independent 55+ resident. With heavily used community rooms, gyms,
libraries, pool and BBQ areas they exude community atmosphere.
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Our Properties – 2020
39 Pleasant Street, Moncton, NB
Constructed in 2007, this 35-unit building is very close to the Lewisville Road properties. With ample
parking that includes six indoor spaces, it suits the 55+ resident. A spacious community area, gym and
outdoor patio make it a sought-after location.
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Our Properties – 2020
75 Emma Street, Oshawa, ON
Completed in 2020, this 20-unit building is just steps-away from downtown Oshawa. Close to
shopping, just 3 km from Lakeridge Hospital, it also enjoys a grassy walking trail, just steps from the
front door. With large three-bedroom two bath apartments it suits the resident that has just
downsized from a single-family home. The building has a brand new high quality gym and a relaxing
library as amenities. The Emma Street property also boasts metered recharge stations for next
generation electric vehicles.
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Our Markets
Greater Moncton
Greater Moncton is the vibrant hub of the Province of New Brunswick. With a population of 144,000
(2017), it is one of Canada’s faster growing cities and the second largest in the Maritimes. With a rental
base of 12,652 units, the Greater Moncton area has a vacancy rate of just 2.2% (October 2019 CMHC).
Immigration from within NB and out of Province continues to drive demand for rental stock. ViveRE’s
target residents live in the area, or move to Moncton to be nearer family or healthcare.

Greater Saint John
Greater Saint John is New Brunswick’s port city, situated in the southeast corner of the Province. With
a population of 126,000, it is home to Saint John Regional Hospital, the Saint John campus of the
University of New Brunswick and the Irving Oil refinery (Canada’s largest). The rental base of 9,384
units and a population that is approximately one third 55 years and older make it an ideal location for
ViveRE Communities Inc. The overall vacancy rate has dropped to 3.3% (October 2019), and is
significantly (less than 2%) lower for properties built after 2010.
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Our Markets
Oshawa, ON
Oshawa is a city of 170,000 (2017) on the shores of Lake Ontario and is the easternmost point of the
Greater Toronto Area. As the last stop for the Go Train, it is rapidly transforming to a bedroom
community of Toronto, just 60 km away. It is home to Lakeridge Health Oshawa, Trent University
Durham, University of Ontario Institute of Technology and Durham College. With a rental base of
12,066 units, Oshawa’s vacancy rate is just 2.4%.
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Our People
MANAGEMENT
Mr. Michael T. Anaka, ICD.D – CEO Mr. Anaka is a business executive based in Dartmouth,
Nova Scotia. He has extensive experience in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, operating
efficiencies and effectiveness, and financial reporting. Prior to joining ViveRE Mike served in a number
of leadership roles with PricewaterhouseCoopers including Managing Partner, Atlantic Canada and
Regional Office Representative on the Canadian leadership group. During his 35-year tenure with PwC
he has served public and private companies ranging from start-ups to multi-national enterprises.
Throughout his career he has developed deep relationships with boards and management of large
family enterprises and has an in-depth understanding of their governance and operating practices.
Mike currently serves on the board of directors of Silver Tiger Metals Inc. (TSX-V) and Nobelium Tech
Corp. (TSX-V).

Glenn Holmes, CPA- CFO Glenn Holmes has more than 23 years’ experience in the financial
management of listed junior mining companies including equity financings, debt financings, corporate
acquisitions, mining feasibility studies and financial restructurings. Mr. Holmes most recently served
as Chief Financial Officer and Vice-President Finance of Etruscan Resources Inc. (TSX) where he
played a lead role in securing a US$100 million combined structured debt financing and gold hedging
facility for the development of an 80,000 ounce per annum gold mine located in West
Africa. Previously Mr. Holmes was Vice-President Finance and Secretary-Treasurer for NovaGold
Resources Inc. (TSX). He holds a B.Comm. and is a member of the Institute of the Chartered
Accountants of Nova Scotia.

Jamie Nicoll – EVP Jamie Nicoll has provided management and corporate finance services to
companies in the private and public markets. He has successfully financed companies in mining, real
estate, technology and life sciences. He was formerly a CEO of a US focused multi-family residential
private company. Jamie’s career includes ten years as a Vice President at PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP, public market experience with Yorkton Securities, Beacon Securities, RBC Dominion Securities
and regulatory experience as a Commissioner of the Nova Scotia Securities Commission. He has
served on the Boards of public, private and not for profit organizations. Jamie’s focus for ViveRE
Communities Inc. is on operations and assisting with financing activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Michael T. Anaka, ICD.D – Mr. Anaka is a business executive based in Dartmouth, Nova Scotia. He
has extensive experience in corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, operating efficiencies and
effectiveness, and financial reporting. Prior to joining ViveRE Mike served in a number of leadership
roles with PricewaterhouseCoopers including Managing Partner, Atlantic Canada and Regional Office
Representative on the Canadian leadership group. During his 35-year tenure with PwC he has served
public and private companies ranging from start-ups to multi-national enterprises. Throughout his
career he has developed deep relationships with boards and management of large family enterprises
and has an in-depth understanding of their governance and operating practices. Mike currently serves
on the board of directors of Silver Tiger Metals Inc. (TSX-V) and Nobelium Tech Corp. (TSX-V).

Jeffrey Dean – Mr. Dean is a Managing Director at Maven Capital, an advisory and private equity
firm based in Toronto. Mr. Dean has over 20 years of investment banking experience. Prior to cofounding Maven Capital in 2012, Mr. Dean worked in a senior role at RBC Capital Markets. Mr. Dean
has significant experience in real estate, mergers and acquisitions, fairness opinions and valuations,
corporate governance, equity and debt financing for both public and private companies and property
portfolio advisory. Over the last 18 years, Mr. Dean has advised on over $13 billion of public M&A
transactions, $15 billion of debt and equity financings and more recently has been focused on
corporate and shareholder governance. He is also a trusted advisor to a number of senior
management teams and public/private boards of directors in the real estate space. Mr. Dean has a
Bachelor of Commerce (High Distinction) from the University of Toronto. Committees: Governance

Kent Farrell – Mr. Farrell is a Managing Director at Maven Capital, an advisory and private equity
firm based in Toronto. Mr. Farrell has more than 20 years of experience in public and private capital
markets, corporate finance and mergers and acquisitions. Prior to joining Maven Capital in 2017, Mr.
Farrell served as the Head of Equity Sales for Credit Suisse Canada. Along with his tenure at Credit
Suisse, he has held senior capital markets roles at Bank of America and Morgan Stanley. Mr. Farrell is
also a director of Canaccord Genuity Growth Corp II. He holds an MBA from the Ivey School of
Business and a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Western Ontario Committees: HR

Drew Koivu – Mr. Koivu is Principal, Multi-residential, Sales at AvisonYoung, a full-service
commercial real estate services firm. He has over 25 years multi-residential brokerage experience. He
was responsible for over $1.5B in transactions over his career. Mr. Koivu was instrumental in the
Milestone Apartment REIT listing, the largest US focused REIT on the TSX. Mr. Koivu has been owner
and operator of an apartment portfolio since 1993. Committees: Audit, Governance
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David Pappin – Mr. Pappin has been actively participating in the commercial real estate business in
Canada for 29 years. His career began within a National Brokerage Firm, specializing in Industrial Sales
and Leasing in an agent capacity. From this beginning David moved into Senior Management
responsible for a business unit of the same brokerage firm in Toronto. An opportunity presented itself
in 2000 to acquire a multifaceted real estate service business which included a Commercial
component active within the Atlantic Canada Marketplace. David, with his partners grew this business
substantially and he subsequently sold his interest in this business in 2006. At this point in his career,
David moved into the Advisor Business assuming responsibility for sourcing and completing all
investments within all investment fund vehicles across the Country. David has completed numerous
acquisitions, joint ventures and development transactions over his career and was instrumental in
growing a new open fund to an AUM in excess of $1B in two years.
David assumed the role of President with Integrated Asset Management (IAM) Real Estate Group. IAM
is a publicly listed company (TSX-IAM) providing investment management services to Canadian
Institutional Pension Funds, Endowments and High net worth individuals. IAM was acquired in July
2019 by Fiera Capital. IAM Real Estate Group is now part of Fiera’s Alternative Platform within Fiera
Real Estate Investments. David has taken the role of Senior Vice President and Fund Manager within
Fiera and continues to oversee the IAM business within the Fiera team.
David completed his bachelor’s degree from McMaster University. He has been involved in numerous
community initiatives including, Board of the Oakville Waterfront Festival, Rotary, Board of Discovery
Centre of Halifax and numerous coaching roles within Hockey and Baseball. Committees: Audit, HR

Dr. Brian Ramjattan – Dr. Ramjattan is the President and CEO of Miranda Management, a
privately held real estate investment company specializing in identifying undervalued properties and
increasing their value through lease restructuring and repurposing. He is also the President and CEO
of Canadian AV Inc., one of the largest AV companies in Atlantic Canada, and a director of Work
Global Canada, a national recruitment and immigration firm specializing in accessing foreign workers.
Dr. Ramjattan has been a family doctor for 29 years, and he is the President and CEO of First Line
Medical Services Inc., a company that conducts clinical trials to develop pharmaceuticals. He is also a
Clinical Associate Professor at Memorial University in the Discipline of Faculty Medicine.
Committees: Governance
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Richard Turner, ICD.D – Mr.Turner, ICD.D – is President and Chief Executive Officer of TitanStar
Investment Group Inc., a private company engaged in the provision of private equity capital to
midmarket businesses and capital for real estate developments and acquisitions. Mr. Turner was
Board Chair of a number of private and public companies, including Board Chair and Audit Committee
Chair of Invesque Inc. (TSX:IVQ); Director and Audit Committee member of WesternOne
Inc.(TSX:WEQ) and Director and Audit Committee Chair of Vancouver Fraser Port Authority; Board
Chair of Pure Industrial REIT (TSX:AAR.UN); Director and Audit Committee Chair of the Organizing
Committee of the Vancouver 2010 Olympic and Paralympic Winter Games (VANOC); Board Chair of
the Insurance Corporation of BC; Board Chair of the British Columbia Lottery Corporation; Board Chair
and Governor of the Vancouver Board of Trade; Governor of the B.C. Business Council and director,
President and Chief Executive Officer of the operating subsidiary of IAT Air Cargo Facilities Income
Fund, a business involved in the development and management of real estate at airports. Mr. Turner
serves as the Honorary Consul for the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan in Vancouver. In 2003, Mr. Turner
received H.R.H. Queen Elizabeth's Golden Jubilee Award for public service in Canada. Mr. Turner holds
a Bachelor of Commerce in Finance from the University of British Columbia and holds the ICD.D
designation. Board Chairman, Committees: Audit
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(previously NSX Silver Inc.)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
Background
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of ViveRE Communities Inc. (previously NSX Silver Inc.)
(“ViveRE” or “the Company”) is dated April 27, 2020, and should be read in conjunction the consolidated audited
financial statements and accompanying notes for the years ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,
which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). All amounts are
in Canadian dollars unless otherwise specified. The financial statements and additional information, including news
releases referenced herein, are available on the Canadian System for Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval
(SEDAR) at www.sedar.com under the Company’s profile. The common shares of ViveRE are traded on the TSX
Venture Exchange (the “Exchange” or “TSXV”) under the symbol “VCOM”.
Forward-Looking Information
Certain statements in this MD&A are forward-looking statements or information (collectively- forward-looking
statements). ViveRE is hereby providing cautionary statements identifying important factors that could cause the
actual results to differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. Any statements that
express, or involve discussions as to, expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives, assumptions or future events or
performance (often, but not always, through the use of words or phrases such as “may”, “is expected to”,
“anticipates”, “estimates”, “intends”, “plans”, “projection”, “could”, “vision”, “goals”, “objective” and “outlook”)
are not historical facts and may be forward-looking and may involve estimates, assumptions and uncertainties which
could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements.
In making these forward-looking statements, ViveRE has assumed that the risks listed below will not adversely
impact the business of ViveRE.
By their nature, forward-looking statements involve numerous assumptions, inherent risks and uncertainties, both
general and specific, which contribute to the possibility that the predicted outcomes may not occur or may be
delayed. The risks, uncertainties and other factors, many of which are beyond the control of ViveRE, that could
influence actual results include, but are not limited to: limited operating history; operating risks; regulatory risks;
substantial capital requirements and liquidity; financing risks and dilution to shareholders; competition; reliance on
management and dependence on key personnel; uninsurable risks; exposure to potential litigation; dividends; and
other factors beyond the control of ViveRE.
Furthermore, any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made, and,
except as required by applicable law, ViveRE undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to
reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of
unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for management to predict all
such factors and to assess in advance the impact of each such factor on the business of ViveRE or the extent to
which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statement. Refer to the section titled “Risk and Uncertainties”.
Company Overview
ViveRE Communities Inc., previously NSX Silver Inc., was incorporated on August 9, 2011 under the Canada
Business Corporations Act and the common shares commenced trading on the TSXV on March 14, 2012 as a Tier 2
Mining Issuer.
During the years 2012 to 2015, the Company’s activities were focused on the exploration of mineral properties in
Sonora State, Mexico. On December 30, 2015, the Company sold its remaining mineral properties after which it
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had no continuing business operations and the Board of Directors of the Company commenced reviewing potential
strategic alternatives.
On February 8, 2016, the Company's listing of its common shares was transferred to the NEX Board of the TSX
Venture Exchange (the "NEX"). The NEX trading platform is a separate board of the TSXV which provides a
unique trading forum for listed companies that have not maintained the TSX Venture's ongoing listing standards.
On August 16, 2016, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement raising gross proceeds of $300,000
through the issuance of 4,999,992 units at a price of $0.06 per unit. Each unit was comprised of one common share
of the Company and one common share purchase warrant. Each warrant entitled the holder to acquire one common
share of the Company for $0.12 for a year of 12 months from the closing date.
On July 31, 2017, the Company announced that it entered into a letter of intent with Village View Limited
Partnership No.1 (“Village View”) to acquire all of the real property located at 41 Noel Avenue, Saint John, New
Brunswick (“41 Noel Avenue”) (“the Transaction”). Completion of the Transaction as contemplated would
constitute a change of business in accordance with TSX Venture Exchange (“TSXV” or the “Exchange”) Policy
5.2., Changes of Business and Reverse Take-overs, as the Company was then listed as a mining issuer. Upon
completing the Transaction, the Company would be engaged in the ownership and management of multi-unit
residential real estate.
During May 2018, the Company secured $350,000 bridge loan financing. The bridge loans were non-interest
bearing, unsecured and had a maturity date of May 30, 2019. The lenders of bridge loans aggregating $300,000
were granted the maximum number of non-transferable warrants permitted to be issued as a loan bonus to such
lender pursuant to Exchange Policy 5.1, being the principal sum outstanding under each promissory note divided by
the market price (as such term is defined in Exchange Policy 1.1) of the common shares of the Company. This
resulted in a total of 2,499,998 warrants being issued to the lenders. Each warrant was exercisable into one common
share of the Company for a period of 12 months from the date of issuance, at an exercise price of $0.12 per share.
On August 22, 2018, the Company closed a brokered private placement for gross proceeds of $1,060,510 by the sale
of 7,070,067 subscription receipts (“Subscription Receipts”) of the Company at a price of $0.15 per Subscription
Receipt (the “Brokered Offering”). The Brokered Offering was brokered on a best-efforts basis by a syndicate of
agents led by Echelon Wealth Partners Inc. and Industrial Alliance Securities Inc. (collectively, the “Agents”). In
addition, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement of 100,000 Subscription Receipts on the same terms
as the Brokered Offering for gross proceeds of $15,000 (together with the Brokered Offering, the “Offering”),
representing aggregate proceeds of $1,075,510. The aggregate proceeds of $1,075,510 were held in escrow in
accordance with the terms of the Subscription Receipts pending completion of the Transaction.
On August 22, 2018, the Company completed the private placement of Series A and Series B convertible debentures
(the “Debentures”) for aggregate gross proceeds of $1,300,000. The Debentures are secured against certain assets of
the Company and its subsidiary, are for a 2-year term and bear an interest rate of 12%, payable half in shares and
half in cash. The Debentures are convertible into units of the Company at a price of $0.15 per unit, such units
consisting of one common share in the capital of the Company (the “Common Shares”) and one Common Share
purchase warrant, each such warrant entitling the holder to acquire one Common Share for a year of 24 months from
the date of issuance of the warrant at a price of $0.175 per Common Share. The proceeds of this financing were used
to finance the Transaction and for general corporate and working capital purposes.
Immediately prior to completing the Transaction, the Company’s name was changed to “ViveRE Communities
Inc.”.
On August 23, 2018, the Company, indirectly through its wholly owned subsidiary, 10664316 Canada Inc.,
completed the acquisition of 41 Noel Avenue from Village View which allowed the Company to reactivate from the
NEX board to the TSXV. The purchase price for 41 Noel Avenue was $5,161,500 plus standard closing costs and
adjustments, and was funded in part with a mortgage financing with CIBC Mortgages Inc. for gross proceeds of
$3,300,000. The mortgage has an interest rate of 4.097%, a term of 3 years and an amortization year of 30 years.
The monthly blended principal and interest payments are $15,874. The mortgage is secured by a first charge over
41 Noel Avenue. The acquired property consists of a multi-family apartment building constructed in 2014, featuring
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31 units with monthly rental prices ranging from a low of $950 for a one bedroom to $1,500 for a large two
bedroom.
In connection with the Transaction, the Company issued to the vendor 666,667 units of the Company representing a
fair value of $100,000 at a price of $0.15 per unit (the “Vendor Take-back Financing”), each unit consisting of
Common Share and one-half of one Common Share purchase warrant, each full warrant entitling the holder to
acquire one Common Share for a period of 24 months from the date of issuance of the warrant at a price of $0.25 per
Common Share.
Following closing of the Transaction, the Company’s outstanding Subscription Receipts automatically converted
into an aggregate of 7,170,067 common shares of the Company and 3,585,034 warrants. Also, the aggregate
Subscription Receipts proceeds of $1,075,510, which had been held in escrow in accordance with the terms of the
Subscription Receipts, were released to the Company. The proceeds of this financing were used to finance the
Transaction and for general corporate and working capital purposes.
Concurrent with the closing of the Transaction, the Company settled outstanding indebtedness of $741,057,
comprised of accounts payable of $295,057, shareholder advances of $96,000 and bridge loans of $350,000, with the
issuance of an aggregate of 6,175,475 Common Shares, at $0.12 per Common Share. Services provided by nonarm’s length parties included in the Shares for Debt Transaction were approved by written consent of the majority of
disinterested shareholders of the Company. Additionally, the Company negotiated the forgiveness of accounts
payable with creditors aggregating $159,472.
The Company filed a Filing Statement, dated August 21, 2018, in respect of the Transaction under the Company’s
profile on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
On February 11, 2019, the Company received aggregate gross proceeds of $200,000 from the exercise of 1,666,665
warrants.
On April 9, 2019, the Company closed a short form prospectus offering of common shares. A total of 14,226,834
common shares were sold at a price of $0.20 per common share for aggregate gross proceeds of $2,845,367. The
Offering was completed by Echelon Wealth Partners Inc. and Industrial Alliance Securities Inc. (collectively, the
“Agents”). In consideration for their services, and pursuant to the terms of an agency agreement, dated February 15,
2019, among the Agents and the Company, the Company paid a cash commission of $97,196 and issued to the
Agents 485,980 non-transferable share purchase warrants with each warrant exercisable into one common share of
the Company at an exercise price equal to $0.20 for a period of 24 months from the date of issuance.
On April 11, 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of Village View No. 2 Limited Partnership, a limited
partnership formed under the laws of the Province of New Brunswick (“Village View LP”), whose sole asset is a
multi-family rental property located at 50 Noel Avenue, Saint John, New Brunswick (the “Noel Property”). The
purchase price for the Noel Property was $7.9 million, subject to customary adjustments, which was paid with the
assumption of the approximately $5.34 million existing 2.55% APR (annual percentage rate) Noel Property
mortgage, maturing September 2026 with respect to the Noel Property and the issuance of 1,000,000 common shares
of the Company to the vendors at a price of $0.20 per common share, and the balance of approximately $2.36
million in cash. The acquisition of the Noel Property in accordance with the acquisition agreement is referred to
herein as the “Acquisition”.
The Acquisition has been structured as a purchase of all the general partner interests of Village View LP held by
SBLS Holdings Inc., a corporation incorporated under the law of the Province of New Brunswick, and all of the
limited partnership interests of Village View LP held by 621946 N.B. Inc., a corporation incorporated under the law
of the Province of New Brunswick, Anron Inc., a corporation incorporated under the law of the Province of New
Brunswick, and Residential Investors and Developers Ltd., a corporation incorporated under the law of the Province
of New Brunswick.
The Noel Property is a high quality, 2016 built, 42 unit, multi-family rental property residence geared towards the
over 55 year old demographic. It is located in the growing St. John, NB sub-market of Millidgeville, situated on the
northern edge of the Saint John River, and adjacent to the Company’s existing property located at 41 Noel Avenue.

23

The Noel Property offers high-end living spaces with granite countertops, stainless appliances, dishwasher,
microwave range hood, washer and dryer, walk-in closet, ensuite bathrooms and private balconies. Common areas
include gym facilities, media and community room, storage lockers as well as 60 parking spaces. The property has
close proximity to a prominent transit route, Horizon’s Saint John Regional Hospital, the University of New
Brunswick and an abundance of nearby shopping, and dining, and community centres.
On September 30, 2019, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement offering of Tier 1 and Tier 2 units.
A total of nineteen (19) Tier 1 units were sold at a price of $25,000 per Tier 1 unit and four (4) Tier 2 units at a price
of $250,000 per Tier 2 unit for aggregate gross proceeds of $1,475,000. Each Tier 1 Unit is comprised of 56,818
common shares of ViveRE and a $12,500 convertible debenture, bearing annual interest of 7%, with a term of two
years. The debentures are convertible to common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.25 per share. Each Tier 2 Unit is
comprised of 568,181 common shares of ViveRE and a $125,000 convertible debenture, bearing annual interest of
7% for a term of two years. The debentures are convertible into common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.25 per
share. Each Tier 2 unit also includes 500,000 common share purchase warrants, exercisable at a price of $0.25 per
share for a period of two years after the closing date. Directors of the Company subscribed for an aggregate of
approximately 15% of the offering.
On October 3, 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of the Ryan Street Properties. ViveRE acquired the
Ryan Street Properties for an aggregate purchase price of $5,488,000 subject to customary adjustments. ViveRE
placed a collateral mortgage in the amount of $4,115,785 with the balance of the purchase price payable in cash
from the proceeds of the Offering. The mortgage bears a fixed annual interest rate of 3.45% and has a term of 5
years with monthly principal and interest payments of $20,440.
The Ryan Street Properties consist of two 23-unit apartment buildings located at 542 and 550 Ryan Street, Moncton,
NB. Constructed in 2012, the Ryan Street Properties are comprised of 6 one-bedroom and 40 two-bedroom units, as
well as, a separate three season community use building and a utility building for equipment storage. The Ryan
Street Properties are conveniently located in the north end of Moncton, close to shopping, healthcare and recreation
facilities.
Events Subsequent to December 31, 2019
Bridge loans
On January 20, 2020, the Company issued $150,000 of promissory notes to arm’s length lenders which have a
maximum maturity date of one year. In consideration of the risk to the lenders in respect of the loans extended, the
Company granted 714,000 warrants to the lenders as a loan bonus pursuant to Policy 5.1 of the Exchange. Each
warrant is exercisable into one common share for a period of 12 months from the date of issuance, at an exercise
price of $0.21 per common share.
Denaco Properties, Moncton, NB
On February 10, 2020, the Company entered into a definitive purchase and sale agreement to acquire a 100-per-cent
interest in three multiunit residential properties comprised 124 rental units (“Denaco Properties”), located in
Moncton, N.B. The properties are located at 150 Lewisville Rd. (55 units), 154 Lewisville Rd. (34 units) and 39
Pleasant St. (35 units) and are owned by Denaco Group Ltd. (“Denaco”). The transaction was subsequently
completed on March 16, 2020.
ViveRE acquired the Denaco Properties for a purchase price of $13.5 million, subject to customary adjustments at
closing. ViveRE satisfied the purchase price with the issuance to Denaco of 2,083,333 common shares of ViveRE at
a price of $0.24 per share, representing consideration of $500,000, with the balance being paid in cash.
In connection with the Acquisition, Denis Arsenault (“Arsenault”), the owner of Denaco subscribed for: (i)
7,291,667 common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.24 per common share for aggregate gross proceeds of
$1,750,000; (ii) an unsecured convertible debenture (“Debenture”) in the principal amount of $1,750,000; and (iii)
7,000,000 common share purchase warrants (“Warrants”), having a 3-year term and an exercise price of $0.27 per
common share (the “Subscription”). The Debenture has a 2-year term, bears interest at the rate 7% per annum to be
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paid annually, and is convertible into 6,481,481common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.27 per common share,
assuming full conversion.
ViveRE has placed mortgages on the Denaco Properties in the aggregate amount of $10.125 million having a fixed
annual rate of interest of 2.05% and a 25-year amortization period.
Upon completion of the Subscription and Acquisition, Arsenault, directly or indirectly, owns a total of 9,374,999
common shares of the Issuer representing 13.92% ownership of the issued number of shares. On a fully diluted basis
post-Acquisition, and presuming Arsenault converted the Debenture into 6,481,481 common shares of the Issuer and
also exercised his Warrants for 7,000,000 common shares of ViveRE, then Arsenault would own 22,856,480
common shares of the Issuer representing 28.29% ownership of all of the issued and outstanding shares of the
Issuer. As a condition of the conversion feature of the Debenture and the exercise of the Warrants, and as required
by the policies of the Exchange, management obtained disinterested shareholder approval from a majority of
shareholders in respect of providing approval for Arsenault to exercise his conversion rights under the Debenture
and his exercise rights under the Warrants, and thereby becoming a control person of the Company as defined under
applicable law and the policies of the Exchange.
2018 Convertible Dentures
Concurrent with the completion of the Arsenault Subscription, the holders of the 2018 Debentures converted the
outstanding principal of $1,300,000 into 8,666,662 units, with each unit consisting of one common share and 0.75
warrant, with each full warrant entitling the holder to acquire one common share at a price of $0.175 per common
share until March 16, 2022.
In accordance with the terms of the 2018 Debentures, the Company intends to settle $9,403 of interest payable for
the period February 1 to March 16, 2020, with the issuance of 37,159 common shares at a deemed price per share of
$0.253. The issuance of the common shares is subject to receipt of Exchange approval.
75 Emma Street, Oshawa, ON
On January 8, 2020, the Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement to acquire all the shares of Emma and
Albert Development Inc. (“Emma”), whose sole asset is the real property located at 75 Emma Street, Oshawa,
Ontario (the “Emma Street Property”). The Emma Street Property is a newly built multi-unit residential property
totaling 20 units.
ViveRE will acquire Emma for a purchase price of $7,300,000, subject to adjustments at closing. ViveRE will
satisfy the purchase price as follows: a mortgage in the maximum amount of $4,781,000; the issuance to the
vendors of 2,083,333 common shares of ViveRE at a deemed price of $0.24 per share representing consideration of
$500,000; the vendors providing an unsecured vendor take back loan in the amount of $500,000 repayable in 24
months and bearing interest at 7% per annum, convertible at the option of the vendors into 1,851,851 common
shares of ViveRE at a deemed price of $0.27 per common share for 24 months from the closing date; the issuance
of 2,000,000 warrants to acquire common shares of ViveRE at an exercise price of $0.27 per common share for a
term of 24 months from the closing date; the assumption of an existing shareholder loan of approximately $900,000
and the balance of the purchase price payable in cash from the proceeds of a $1,325,000 private placement financing
and cash on hand.
The private placement financing was completed with an effective date of April 16, 2020. A total of thirty-three Tier
1 units were sold at a price of $25,000 per Tier 1 unit and two Tier 2 units at a price of $250,000 per Tier 2 unit for
aggregate gross proceeds of $1,325,000. Each Tier 1 unit comprises 52,083 common shares of ViveRE and a
$12,500 convertible debenture, bearing annual interest of 7% for a term of two years. The debenture is convertible
into common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.27 per share. Each Tier 2 unit comprises 520,833 common shares of
ViveRE and a $125,000 convertible debenture, bearing annual interest of 7% for a term of two years. The debenture
is convertible into common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.27 per share. Each Tier 2 unit also includes 500,000
common share purchase warrants, exercisable at a price of $0.27 per share for a period of two years from the date of
issuance.
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The securities issued pursuant to the private placement financing and any common shares issuable thereunder are
subject to a four-month hold period. Directors of the Company subscribed for seven Tier 1 units for aggregate
proceeds of $175,000. The Company paid a cash commission of $21,000 which was equal to 7.0% of the gross
proceeds raised through certain brokers.
On April 27, 2020, the Company completed the Emma acquisition.
ATMJ Properties, Moncton, NB
On February 18, 2020, the Company entered into an exclusive letter of intent to acquire a 100% interest in ten (10)
multi-unit residential properties (the “ATMJ Properties” or the “ATMJ Acquisition”) comprising 223 units located
in Moncton, New Brunswick. The Properties are located at 145-155 McLaughlin Road, 27 Edmond Street, 50
Maplewood Drive and 2380 Mountain Road, and are owned by ATMJ Properties Inc. (“ATMJ”).
On April 17, 2020, the Company announced it entered into a definitive agreement with ATMJ whereby ViveRE will
acquire the ATMJ Properties for a purchase price of $30 million, subject to customary adjustments at closing.
ViveRE will satisfy the purchase price as follows: (i) the payment to ATMJ of deposits totalling $50,000; (ii) the
issuance to ATMJ of 4,166,667 common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.24 per share representing consideration
of $1,000,000; (iii) the issuance to ATMJ of an unsecured convertible debenture in the amount of $1,000,000 with a
two year term having an interest rate of 7% per annum and convertible into common shares of ViveRE at a price of
$0.27 per share; (iv) the issuance to ATMJ of 4,000,000 common share purchase warrants, having a 3-year term and
an exercise price of $0.27 per common share; (v) the placing of a mortgage in the amount of $23,062,000; and (vi)
the balance paid to ATMJ in cash.
The Acquisition is expected to close in May 2020 and is subject to Exchange approval.
ViveRE will undertake a non-brokered private placement financing of up to $7,500,000 in the form of units. Tier 1
and Tier 2 units are comprised of 50% common shares at a price of $0.24 per common share and 50% convertible
debenture, bearing interest at 7%, maturing in 2 years and convertible to common shares of ViveRE at a price of
$0.27 per common share. Tier 1 Units will be offered in amounts of $25,000 per Unit. Tier 2 Units will be offered in
amounts of $250,000 per Unit. Each Tier 2 Unit purchased will also include 500,000 common share purchase
warrants, exercisable at a price of $0.27 per common share of ViveRE for a period of two years from issuance. Tier
3 Units will also be offered in amounts of $500,000 per Unit. Each Tier 3 Unit is comprised of 2,083,333 common
shares of ViveRE and 1,000,000 common share purchase warrants, exercisable at a price of $0.27 per common share
of ViveRE for a period of two years from issuance. The proceeds from this offering will be used to fund the ATMJ
Acquisition and for general working capital. The private placement financing is subject to Exchange approval.
Description of Business and Strategy
As a real estate issuer, the Company plans to acquire recently built or refurbished, highly leased multi-residential
properties in bedroom communities across Canada. The Company aims to satisfy the needs of the newly emerging
55+ resident. The demographic that has changed the world is now changing the way residential rental apartments
cater to their requirements. Their desire for community, along with service and convenience amenities has led to the
emergence of the Naturally Occurring Retirement Community or “NORC”. Apartments are the next “home”, after
years of owning they look forward to the carefree lifestyle provided through renting in a community of their peers.
ViveRE Communities Inc. intends to consolidate this emerging market niche. The Company has developed a robust
pipeline of qualified properties for potential acquisition. Screening properties identified to match the criteria set out
in the Company business plan (proximity to healthcare, amenities, services and shopping), management has
identified a number of attractive targets for consideration by the Board. The Company intends to acquire a further
500 units in the coming twelve months.
ViveRE intends to introduce a menu of services that will enhance the living experience of the resident base. Today’s
active 55+ individual or family is interested in community and independence, and the properties that will attract
like-minded residents. A life style that eliminates the work and risk associated with a single-family home at a stage
when the resident desires convenience and freedom. The 55+ demographic includes some 9.7 million Canadians.
ViveRE intends to introduce third party supplied services such as housekeeping, wellness checks, pet care, grocery
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and dry cleaning delivery, information technology support, mobility vehicle parking and storage and other services
which might enhance the lives of residents. Revenue from these services has the potential to enhance the operating
profitability of a property beyond a traditional rental revenue model.
Property management will initially be handled by third party providers on a contract basis. A condo or hospitality
style level of service is part of the business plan, with third party providers to be chosen with this level of service in
mind.
Like other real estate companies, the Company expects to have a highly scalable business model where a small team
can drive a large number of transactions. ViveRE plans to execute a growth strategy, quickly acquiring additional
properties and the resulting revenue that will allow it to add management capacity. The Company believes that the
properly managed execution of its growth strategy and careful attention to market participants will help create a
successful publicly listed real estate company.
Selected Financial Information
ViveRE’s net loss for the year ended December 31, 2019 was $1,406,304 ($0.04 per share) compared to a net loss of
$691,936 ($0.05 per share) for the year ended December 31, 2018 and a net loss of $324,418 ($0.03 per share) for
the year ended December 31, 2017.
The following table contains selected financial information for the three most recently completed fiscal years.

Investment properties
Total assets
Convertible debentures – liability component
Mortgages payable, net of unamortized
finance costs
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Rental income
Net property operating income
Net loss
Net loss per share

As at
December 31,
2019
$
18,209,620
18,478,679
1,346,215

As at
December 31,
2018
$
5,228,432
5,384,752
486,476

As at
December 31,
2017
$
17,911
-

12,239,301
13,983,978
4,494,701
1,089,545
625,177
(1,406,304)
(0.04)

3,252,582
4,129,366
1,255,386
157,492
96,925
(691,936)
(0.05)

365,761
(347,850)
(324,418)
(0.03)
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Summary of Quarterly Operating Results
The following table presents the quarterly operating results for the Company for the last eight quarters:
Quarter ended
Rental revenue
Operating cots
Net property operating
income
Administrative expenses
Consulting fees
Insurance
Professional fees
Filing and other fees
Office and other
Stock-based compensation
Travel
Finance costs
Interest expense
Amortization expense
Accretion expense

Depreciation expense
Other expenses (income)
Write-down of sales tax
recoverable
Loss on settlement of Bridge
loans
Gain on settlement of accounts
payable

Net loss before income taxes
Deferred income tax recovery

Net income (loss) for the
quarter
Basic and diluted net loss per
share

Dec 31,
2018
$
423,403
194,890

September
30, 2019
$
288,095
121,065

June 30,
2019
$
265,447
98,555

Mar 31,
2019
$
112,600
49,858

Dec 31,
2018
$
111,050
46,338

Sep 30,
2018
$
46,442
14,229

Jun 30,
2018
$
-

Mar 31,
2018
$
-

228,513

167,030

166,892

62,742

64,712

32,213

-

-

113,330
(1,588)
25,285
18,952
2,673
7,423
166,075

204,498
12,163
(19,052)
21,982
2,620
10,304
232,515

194,765
4,340
25,962
17,666
4,341
5,155
252,229

167,796
4,364
11,380
12,605
1,863
20,000
218,008

156,250
6,456
2,300
11,569
25,836
3,625
206,036

140,424
2,663
112,139
17,700
3,217
5,583
281,726

117,124
2,005
69,255
1,070
(2,243)
2,305
189,516

65,663
1,973
2,977
5,323
4,723
80,659

144,551
24,266
115,333
284,150

105,624
19,816
86,140
211,580

106,976
17,647
74,731
199,354

71,725
15,232
64,832
151,789

72,128
10,090
34,781
116,999

31,174
8,712
39,562
79,448

-

-

133,078

97,916

90,435

35,352

29,210

20,739

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

180,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(159,472)
20,528

-

-

(354,790)
41,000

(374,981)

(375,126)

(342,407)

-

-

-

(287,533)
236,000

(370,228)
-

(189,516)
-

(80,659)
-

(313,790)

(374,981)

(375,126)

(342,407)

(51,533)

(370,228)

(189,516)

(80,659)

(0.01)

(0.01)

(0.01)

(0.01)

(0.00)

(0.02)

(0.02)

(0.01)
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Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2019
The Company’s net loss for the year ended December 31, 2019 was $1,406,304 or $0.04 per share compared to a net
loss of $691,936 or $0.05 per share for the year ended December 31, 2018.
For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company’s investment properties generated gross rental income of
$1,089,545 (2018 – $157,492) and net operating income of $625,177 (2018 – $96,925). Depreciation expense
recorded for fiscal 2019 was $356,781 (2018 – $49,949). The increase in rental income was related to a full year of
ownership of 41 Noel coupled with the acquisition of 42 rental units in April 2019 (Village View LP) and 46 rental
units in October 2019 (Ryan Street Properties) bringing the total number of units under ownership at year end to
119.
General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2019 totaled $868,827 compared to $757,936
for the prior year. The higher expenditures in 2019 are a result of the Company’s growth during 2019, with the
exception of professional fees, which totaled $43,575 in 2019 compared to $183,694 in the prior year. The higher
expense in the prior year related to professional fees incurred in completing the Change of Business transaction.
Also, in 2019 the Company incurred non-cash stock-based compensation expense of $20,000 relating to the grant of
200,000 stock options having an exercise price of $0.12 per share. In determining the stock-based compensation
expense, the fair value of options issued is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.
Finance costs incurred for the year ended December 31, 2019 totaled $846,873 (2018 - $196,448) comprised of
mortgage and convertible debenture interest expense of $428,876 (2018 - $103,302), accretion expense relating to
the convertible debentures of $341,036 (2018 – 74,343) and amortization of mortgages and convertible debenture
costs of $76,694 (2018 – 18,803). The increased finance costs in the current year were attributable to the mortgage
costs for 41 Noel being for a full year compared to a partial year in 2018, the addition of the 50 Noel mortgage in
April 2019 and the Ryan Street Properties mortgage in October 2019, and the issuance of the 2019 convertible
debentures on September 30, 2019.
The Company incurred a deferred income tax recovery of $41,000 for the year ended December 31, 2019 compared
to $236,000 in the prior year.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
At December 31, 2019, the Company reported total current assets of $269,059, total current liabilities of $1,602,214
and a working capital deficiency of $1,333,155.
Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the Company secured $150,000 of bridge loan financing having a maximum
term of one year, as well as, a $75,000 operating line of credit from National Bank of Canada, and the 2018
convertible debentures were converted into equity units.
As described in the section titled “Events Subsequent to December 31, 2019” the Company completed the
acquisition of an additional 124 rental units (Denaco Acquisition) bringing the total number of units under
ownership to 243. The Company has a further 243 units under agreement which it anticipates closing by end of May
2020. Upon successfully closing these acquisitions the Company expects to generate cash flow from operations that
will more than cover its forecast financing and G&A costs.
As described in the section titled “Events Subsequent to December 31, 2019” the Company completed the
acquisition of an additional 124 rental units (Denaco Acquisition) and the 2018 convertible debentures were
converted into equity units. These transactions will enhance the Company’s liquidity position going forward.
The Company finances its operations through the net operating cashflow from its investment properties and the
issuance of equity and convertible debt securities. Until such time as the Company has established sufficient
cashflow from operations, it is dependent on raising additional funding through the issuance of equity and
convertible debt securities in order to meet its ongoing operating requirements. While management has been
successful in obtaining funding in the past, there can be no assurance that it will be able to do so in the future.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements.
Related Party Transactions
Compensation of directors and officers
Year ended
Year ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
$
$

CEO – consulting fees
Executive VP – consulting fees
CFO – consulting fees
Secretary – consulting fees

230,000
80,500
50,614
47,908

82,033
86,250
53,992
–

409,022

222,275

The Company has agreements with two of its officers whereby it has the option to pay consulting fees aggregating
$72,500 per quarter with the issuance of common shares. The deemed price of the common shares to be issued will
be determined at the end of each three month period at market price after the consulting services are provided. The
first three month period ended on February 28, 2019, for which an aggregate 362,500 common shares were issued at
a deemed price of $0.20 per share. The second three month period ended on May 31, 2019, for which an aggregate
362,500 common shares were issued at a deemed price of $0.20 per share. The third period was shortened to the two
month period ended July 31, 2019, for which an aggregate of 219,696 common shares were issuable at a deemed
price of $0.22 per share to pay consulting fees aggregating $48,333 (note 10f).
Advisory services
Advisory services were provided during the year ended December 31, 2019 by a non-executive director and a
corporation owned by two non-executive directors of the Company. The cost of these advisory services during the
year was $151,783 (2018 – $59,798).
The Company has agreements with the providers of the advisory services whereby it has the option to pay advisory
fees aggregating $37,500 per quarter with the issuance of common shares. The deemed price of the common shares
to be issued will be determined at the end of each three month period at market price after the consulting services are
provided. The first three month period ended on February 28, 2019, for which an aggregate 187,500 common shares
were issued at a deemed price of $0.20 per share. The second three month period ended on May 31, 2019, for which
an aggregate 187,500 common shares were issued at a deemed price of $0.20 per share. The third period was
shortened to the two month period ended July 31, 2019, for which an aggregate of 113,635 common shares were
issuable at a deemed price of $0.22 per share to pay consulting fees aggregating $25,000 (note 10f).
Convertible debentures
On August 22, 2018, directors subscribed either individually or through corporations they owned to an aggregate of
1,150,000 units and 825 convertible debentures, with each debenture having a face value of $1,000, issued by the
Company pursuant to private placement financings for aggregate proceeds of $997,500.
Interest expense incurred on these convertible dentures during the year ended December 31, 2019 totalled $157,011
(December 31, 2018 – $10,578). Pursuant to the contractual terms of the convertible debentures, one-half of the
quarterly interest expense is payable with the issuance of common shares.
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Subscription to Units
During the year ended December 31, 2019, directors of the Company subscribed, either individually or through
corporations they owned, to an aggregate of nine Tier 1 units for aggregate proceeds of $225,000. These units
comprised 511,362 common shares and $112,500 Debentures.
Outstanding Share Data
The Company has 70,086,412 common shares issued and outstanding at April 27, 2020.
The Company has 22,599,915 common share purchase warrants outstanding at April 27, 2020. The following table
provides additional details of the common share purchase warrants outstanding.
Description
Warrants issued pursuant to private
placement financing
Warrants issued pursuant to vendor takeback financing
Broker Warrants issued pursuant to the
August 2018 private placement financing
Advisor’s warrants issued in connection with
the August 2018 COB Transaction
Agents’ warrants issued in connection with
the April 2019 Offering
Warrants issued pursuant to the September
2019 Offering
Loan Bonus Warrants issued January 2020
Warrants issued March 2020 in connection
with Denaco transaction
Warrants issued March 2020 pursuant to the
exercise of the 2018 convertible debentures
Warrants issued pursuant to April 2020
Offering

Expiry date

Exercise
price

Number of
warrants

August 23, 2020

$0.25

3,585,030

August 23, 2020

$0.25

333,333

August 23, 2020

$0.15

681,572

August 23, 2020

$0.15

300,000

April 9, 2021

$0.20

485,980

September 30, 2021
January 20, 2021

$0.25
$0.21

2,000,000
714,000

March 16, 2023

$0.27

7,000,000

March 16, 2022

$0.175

6,500,000

April 16, 2022

$0.27

1,000,000

Each Broker Warrant issued pursuant to the August 2018 private placement financing is exercisable for one Unit at a
price of $0.15 to August 23, 2020 with each Unit comprised of one common share and one-half of one common
share purchase warrant. Each whole warrant entitles the holder to acquire one common share at a price of $0.25 to
August 23, 2020.
Pursuant to the convertible debentures issued during 2018, the Company has the obligation to issue a total of 37,159
common shares to settle interest expense of $9,403 relating to the period February 1 to March 16, 2020. The
issuance is subject to receipt of Exchange approval.
Convertible debentures issued during 2019 having a face value of $737,500 are convertible into common shares of
the Company at a price of $0.25 per common share to September 30, 2021.
In March 2020, the Company issued convertible debentures having a face value of $1,750,00 which are convertible
into common shares of the Company at a price of $0.27 per common share to March 16, 2022.
In April 2020, the Company issued convertible debentures having a face value of $662,500 which are convertible
into common shares of the Company at a price of $0.27 per common share to April 16, 2022.
At April 27, 2020, the Company has outstanding 200,000 stock options having an exercise price of $0.12 and an
expiry date of January 21, 2029.
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If all warrants and stock options were exercised, all convertible debentures were converted, and the shares for
debenture interest are issued, the number of common shares of the Corporation issued and outstanding would be
105,149,457.
New accounting standards not yet adopted
The IASB issued the following standards that has not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements as their effective date falls within annual periods beginning subsequent to the current reporting period.
IAS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Estimates and Errors
On October 31, 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS
8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. These amendments clarify the definition of
‘material’ and aligns the definition used within the IFRS Standards. The effective date of the amendment is for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 and is to be applied prospectively.
The application of this amendment is not expected to have a material impact to the Company.
IFRS 3 – Business Combinations
On October 22, 2018 the IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations to narrow the definition of a
business and introduce a screening test, which eliminates the requirement for a detailed assessment of the definition,
when met. The effective date of the amendment is for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 and is to
be applied prospectively.
The application of this amendment is not expected to have a material impact to the Company.
Risks and Uncertainties
The following are certain factors relating to the business of the Company. These risks and uncertainties are not the
only ones facing the Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to the Company, or that the
Company currently deems immaterial, may also impair the operations of the Company. If any such risks actually
occur, the financial condition, liquidity and results of operations of the Company could be materially adversely
affected and the ability of the Company to implement its growth plans could be adversely affected.
The following is a description of certain risks and uncertainties that may affect the business of the Company.
Operational Risks
Reliance on Management
The ability of the Company to successfully implement its business strategy and operate its business will depend in
large part on the continued involvement of the Company’s current management team. Shareholders should realize
that they are relying on the experience, judgment, discretion, integrity and good faith of the management team. If the
Company loses the services of one or all of the members of its current management team, the business, financial
condition and results of operations of ViveRE may be materially adversely affected.
Limited Operating History
Prior to completing the acquisition of 41 Noel in 2018, ViveRE had conducted no active business, had limited
financial resources and received no revenues other than interest revenues. While the Company has successfully
completed the acquisition of additional investment properties in 2019, there is no assurance that the Company will
be successful in achieving a return on Shareholders’ investments and the likelihood of success must be considered in
light of its early stage of operations.
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Internal Controls
Effective internal controls are necessary for ViveRE to provide reliable financial reports and to help prevent fraud.
Although management of ViveRE will undertake a number of procedures and implement a number of safeguards in
order to help ensure the reliability of ViveRE’s financial reports, including those imposed on ViveRE under
Canadian securities law, ViveRE cannot be certain that such measures will ensure that ViveRE will maintain
adequate control over financial processes and reporting. Failure to implement required new or improved controls, or
difficulties encountered in their implementation, could harm the Company’s results of operations or cause it to fail
to meet its reporting obligations. If the Company or its auditors discover a material weakness, the disclosure of that
fact, even if quickly remedied, could reduce the market’s confidence in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and harm the trading price of the Common Shares.
Volatility of Share Price
Securities markets throughout the world are cyclical and, over time, tend to undergo high levels of price and volume
volatility. A publicly traded company will not necessarily trade at values determined by reference to the underlying
value of its business. The market price of the Common Shares could be subject to significant fluctuations in
response to variations in quarterly and annual operating results, the results of any public announcements the
Company makes, general economic conditions, and other factors. Increased levels of volatility and resulting market
turmoil may adversely impact the price of the Common Shares. If the Company (as it is expected to be and as it has
in the past) is required to access capital markets to carry out its business objectives, the state of domestic and
international capital markets and other financial systems could affect its access to, and cost of, capital. Such capital
may not be available on terms acceptable to the Company or at all, and this could have a material adverse impact on
its business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects.
Dilution
ViveRE is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares and other securities for such consideration
and on such terms and conditions as may be established by the Board without the approval of the Shareholders. It is
currently anticipated that the Company may be required to conduct additional equity financings in order to finance
additional property acquisitions and develop the business of the Company as currently planned and envisioned by
management of the Company. Any further issuance of Common Shares pursuant to such equity financings will
dilute the interests of existing Shareholders and such Shareholders will have no pre-emptive rights in connection
with such future issuances. In addition, conversion of the Convertible Debentures will also dilute the interests of
existing Shareholders.
Financing Risks
The Company’s business model is expected to be dependent on making investments in additional properties and the
Company anticipates having to raise additional capital to fund these investments. While the Company may generate
additional working capital through equity or debt offerings, or through the receipt of revenue or other payments
from properties, there is no assurance that such funds will be sufficient to facilitate the development of ViveRE’s
business as envisioned or, in the case of equity financings, that such funds will be available on terms acceptable to
the Company or at all. If available, future equity financing may result in substantial dilution to the Shareholders.
Conflicts of Interest
Certain of the directors and officers of the Company will also serve as directors and/or officers of other companies.
Consequently, there exists the possibility for such directors and officers to be in a position of conflict. Any decision
made by any of such directors and officers will be made in accordance with their duties and obligations under the
Canada Business Corporation Act (“CBCA”) and other applicable laws to deal fairly and in good faith with a view
to the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders. In addition, each of the directors is required to declare
and refrain from voting on any matter in which such directors may have a conflict of interest in accordance with the
procedures set forth in the CBCA, and other applicable laws.
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Early Stage of Development
The Company is currently in an early stage of development. There will be limited financial, operational and other
information available with which to evaluate the prospects of the Company. There can be no assurance that the
Company’s operations will be profitable in the future or will generate sufficient cash flow to satisfy its working
capital requirements.
Limited Number of Future Investments
While the Company’s intention is to negotiate and fund additional investments in properties in different
communities, it could take many years to create a diversified portfolio of multi-family rental properties and there is
no guarantee the Company will ever achieve a portfolio of sufficient size. The Company may have a significant
portion of its assets dedicated to a single property or community for an extended period of time. In the event that any
such property or community is unsuccessful or experiences a downturn, this could have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition.
Ability to Negotiate Additional Investments
A key element of the Company’s growth strategy is expected to involve negotiating and finding investments in other
multi-family rental properties. Achieving the benefits of future investments will depend in part on successfully
identifying and capturing such opportunities in a timely and efficient manner and in structuring such arrangements
to ensure a stable and growing stream of revenues. The Company’s ability to identify investee multi-family rental
properties and negotiate and fund additional investments in such a manner is not guaranteed.
Ability to Manage Future Growth
The Company’s ability to achieve desired growth will depend on its ability to identify, evaluate and successfully
negotiate and fund investments in other multi-family rental properties. As the Company grows, it will also be
required to hire, train, supervise and manage new employees. Failure to manage any future growth or to successfully
negotiate suitable investments effectively could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial
condition and results of operations.
Effect of General Economic and Political Conditions
The Company’s business and the business of its investee properties are expected to be subject to the impact of
changes in national or international economic conditions, including but not limited to, recessionary or inflationary
trends, equity market conditions, consumer credit availability, interest rates, consumers’ disposable income and
spending levels, job security and unemployment, and overall consumer confidence. These economic conditions may
be further affected by political events throughout the world that cause disruptions in the financial markets, either
directly or indirectly. Adverse economic and political developments could have a material adverse effect on the
Company and its investee companies’ business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
Payment of Dividends
The Company has never declared dividends on any of its securities and the Company intends to reinvest all future
earnings to finance the development and growth of its business. As a result, the Company does not intend to pay
dividends on its securities in the foreseeable future, except as explicitly required by the rights and restrictions of
such securities. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of the Board and will depend on
the Company’s financial condition, operating results, capital requirements, contractual restrictions on the payment of
dividends; prevailing market conditions and any other factors that the Board deems relevant.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
There is no guarantee that cash flow from real property investments will be readily available or will provide the
Company with sufficient funds to meet its ongoing financial obligations. The Company may therefore require
additional equity or debt financing to meet its operational requirements. The Company also plans to rely on
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additional equity financing to make investments in properties to grow the Company’s business to the level
envisioned by its management. There can be no assurance that such financing will be available when required or
available on commercially favourable terms or on terms that are otherwise satisfactory to the Company. The ability
of the Company to arrange such financing in the future will depend in part upon prevailing capital market conditions
as well as its business performance.
Litigation
To the Company’s knowledge, as of the date of this MD&A, no material claims or litigation have been brought
against ViveRE. However, the Company may become party to litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of
business, which could adversely affect its business. Should any litigation in which the Company becomes involved
be determined against the Company, such a decision could adversely affect the Company’s ability to continue
operating and the market price for the common shares, and could result in significant financial and management
resources of the Company being expended in connection therewith. Even if the Company is involved in litigation
and wins, litigation can redirect significant company resources.
In addition to being subject to litigation in the ordinary course of business, in the future, the Company may be
subject to class actions, derivative actions and other securities litigation and investigations. This litigation may be
time consuming, expensive and may distract the Company from the conduct of its daily business. It is possible that
the Company will be required to pay substantial judgments, settlements or other penalties and incur expenses that
could have a material adverse effect on its operating results, liquidity or financial position. Expenses incurred in
connection with these lawsuits, which would be expected to include substantial fees of lawyers and other
professional advisors, and the Company’s obligations to indemnify officers and directors who may be parties to such
actions, could materially adversely affect the Company’s reputation, operating results, liquidity or financial position.
Real Estate Risks
Indirect Investment in Real Estate
An investment in the Common Shares is an investment in real estate through the Company’s indirect interest in the
investment properties it acquires. Investment in real estate is subject to numerous risks, including the factors listed
below and other events and risk factors which are beyond the control of the Company.
General Real Estate Ownership Risks
All real property investments are subject to a degree of risk and uncertainty. The value of real property and any
improvements thereto depend on the credit and financial stability of tenants and upon the vacancy rates of such
properties. The investment properties will generate revenue through rental payments made by the tenants thereof.
The ability to rent vacant suites in the investment properties will be affected by many factors, including changes in
general economic conditions (such as the availability and cost of mortgage funds), local conditions (such as an
oversupply of space or a reduction in demand for real estate in the area), government regulations, changing
demographics, competition from other available properties and various other factors. If a significant number of
tenants are unable to meet their obligations under their leases or if a significant amount of available space in the
investment properties becomes vacant and cannot be re-leased on economically favourable terms, the investment
properties may not generate revenues sufficient to meet operating expenses, including debt service and capital
expenditures, and the Company’s net income will be adversely affected.
Certain significant expenditures, including property taxes, maintenance costs, mortgage payments, insurance costs
and related charges must be made throughout the year of ownership of real property regardless of whether the
investment properties are producing any income. Real property investments tend to be relatively illiquid, with the
degree of liquidity generally fluctuating in relationship with demand for and the perceived desirability of such
investments. Such illiquidity will tend to limit the Company’s ability to vary its portfolio promptly in response to
changing economic or investment conditions. If the Company were to be required to quickly liquidate its real
property investments, the proceeds might be significantly less than the aggregate carrying value of the investment
properties or less than what could be expected to be realized under normal circumstances. The Company may, in the
future, be exposed to a general decline of demand by tenants for space in the investment properties. As well, certain
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of the leases of the investment properties held by the Company may have early termination provisions which, if
exercised, would reduce the average lease term.
Historical occupancy rates and revenues are not necessarily an accurate prediction of the future occupancy rates for
the investment properties or revenues to be derived therefrom. There can be no assurance that, upon the expiry or
termination of existing leases, the average occupancy rates and revenues will be higher than historical occupancy
rates and revenues, and it may take a significant amount of time for market rents to be recognized by the Company
due to internal and external limitations on its ability to charge these new market-based rents in the short-term.
Substitutions for Residential Rental Suites
Demand for rental suites in the investment properties is impacted by and inversely related to the relative cost of
home ownership. The cost of home ownership depends upon, among other things, interest rates offered by financial
institutions on mortgages and similar home financing transactions. With the recent global economic crisis, interest
rates offered by financial institutions for financing home ownership have been at historically low levels. If the
interest rates offered by financial institutions for home ownership financing remain low or fail to rise, demand for
rental suites may be adversely affected. A reduction in the demand for rental suites may have an adverse effect on
the Company’s ability to lease suites in the investment properties and on the rents charged.
Government Regulation
Certain provinces in Canada may have enacted residential tenancy legislation which may impose, among other
things, rent control guidelines that limit a landlord’s ability to raise rental rates at its properties. The Province of
New Brunswick has not currently enacted residential tenancy legislation that imposes rent control guidelines that
could limit the Company’s ability to raise rental rates at the investment properties. There can be no assurances,
however, that such legislation, regulations or guidelines will not be enacted or promulgated in the future.
In addition to limiting a landlord’s ability to raise rental rates, residential tenancy legislation in certain provinces
may provide certain rights to tenants, while imposing obligations upon landlords. Residential tenancy legislation
may also prescribe procedures which must be followed by a landlord in order to terminate a residential tenancy. As
certain proceedings may need to be brought before the respective judicial or administrative body governing
residential tenancies as appointed under a province’s residential tenancy legislation, it may take several months to
terminate a residential lease, even where the tenant’s rent is in arrears.
Further, residential tenancy legislation in certain provinces may provide tenants with the right to bring certain claims
to the respective judicial or administrative body seeking an order to, among other things, compel landlords to
comply with health, safety, housing and maintenance standards. As a result, landlords may, in the future, incur
capital expenditures which may not be fully recoverable from tenants.
Residential tenancy legislation may be subject to further regulations or may be amended, repealed or enforced, or
new legislation may be enacted, in a manner which will materially adversely affect the ability of landlords to
maintain the historical level of earnings of their properties.
Interest Rate Fluctuations
The Company’s financing arrangement may include indebtedness with interest rates based on variable lending rates
that will result in fluctuations in the Company’s cost of borrowing.
Environmental Matters
Under various environmental and ecological laws, the Company could become liable for the costs of removal or
remediation of certain hazardous or toxic substances released on or in the investment properties or disposed of at
other locations. The failure to deal effectively with such substances may adversely affect the Company’s ability to
sell the investment properties or to borrow using the investment properties as collateral, and could potentially also
result in claims against the Company by third parties.
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Uninsured Losses
The Company will arrange for comprehensive insurance, including fire, liability and extended coverage, of the type
and in the amounts customarily obtained for properties similar to investment properties to be owned by the
Company and will endeavour to obtain coverage where warranted against earthquakes and floods. However, in
many cases certain types of losses (generally of a catastrophic nature) are either uninsurable or not economically
insurable. Should such a disaster occur with respect to the investment properties, the Company could suffer a loss of
capital invested and not realize any profits which might be anticipated from the disposition of the investment
properties.
Risk of Natural Disasters
While the Company has insurance coverage for its existing investment property, the insurance coverage may not
cover all natural disasters which may occur. Floods, hurricanes, storms, earthquakes, terrorism, or other natural
disasters may significantly affect the Company’s operations and the investment properties, and may cause the
Company to experience reduced rental revenue, incur clean-up costs or otherwise incur costs in connection with
these natural disasters. These events may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, cash flows,
financial condition and results of operations and ability to make dividend payments to its Shareholders, to the extent
declared.
Reliance on Property Management
The Company may rely upon independent management companies to perform property management functions in
respect of its investment properties. To the extent the Company relies upon such management companies, the
employees of such management companies will devote as much of their time to the management of the investment
properties as in their judgment is reasonably required and may have conflicts of interest in allocating management
time, services and functions among the investment properties and their other development, investment and/or
management activities.
Competition for Real Property Investments or Tenants
The Company will compete for suitable real property investments with individuals, corporations, real estate
investment trusts and similar vehicles and institutions (both Canadian, U.S. and foreign) which are presently seeking
or which may seek in the future real property investments or tenants similar to those sought by the Company. Such
competition could have an impact on the Company’s ability to lease suites in the investment properties and on the
rents charged. An increased availability of investment funds allocated for investment in real estate would tend to
increase competition for real property investments and increase purchase prices, reducing the yield on such
investments. There is a risk that continuing increased competition for real property acquisitions may increase
purchase prices to levels that are not accretive.
Revenue Shortfalls
Revenues from the investment properties may not increase sufficiently to meet increases in operating expenses or
debt service payments under the financing arrangements or to fund changes in the variable rates of interest charged
in respect of such loans.
Fluctuations in Capitalization Rates
As interest rates fluctuate in the lending market, generally capitalization rates will as well, which affects the
underlying value of real estate. As such, when interest rates rise, generally capitalization rates should be expected to
rise. Over the year of investment, capital gains and losses at the time of disposition can occur due to the increase or
decrease of these capitalization rates.
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Canadian Market Factors
The investment properties will be located in Canada and economic conditions since the beginning of 2008 have been
challenging in the North American economy. As a result, income from, and the value of, the investment properties
may decline if there is a downtown in the Canadian economy.
Impact of COVID-19
The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s operations as at April 27, 2020 has been minimal. At April 1, 2020, the
Company’s portfolio of 243 rental units had less than 1% vacancy. None of the tenants requested deferral of their
April rent and all rents were collected in full. This reflects the demographic and quality of the Company’s resident
base. ViveRE’s priority at this time continues to be operating in a manner that promotes the safety and health of our
residents, staff, business partners and communities. The overall impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s business
will depend on a number of factors that are unknown at this time, including the duration of states of emergency in
the various jurisdictions where the Company has properties.
Additional Information
This document, as well as additional information relating to the Company, is available on SEDAR at
www.sedar.com.
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ViveRE Communities Inc.
Consolidated Financial Statements
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

For the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018
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KPMG LLP
Purdy’s Wharf Tower One
1959 Upper Water Street, Suite 1500
Halifax NS B3J 3N2
Canada
Telephone (902)-492-6000
Fax (902)-492-1307

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Shareholders of ViveRE Communities Inc.

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ViveRE Communities Inc. (the
“Entity”), which comprise:



the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2019 and
December 31, 2018



the consolidated statements of loss and comprehensive loss for the years then ended



the consolidated statements of changes in equity for the years then ended



the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended



and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies
(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2019 and December 31,
2018, and its financial performance, and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our
auditors’ report.
We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
We draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements, which indicates that the Entity has
incurred losses and negative cash flows from operations for the year ended December 31,
2019.
As stated in Note 1 in the financial statements, these events or conditions, along with other
matters as set forth in Note 1 in the financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern.
KPMG LLP is a Canadian limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG
network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP.
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Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises:

the information included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis filed with the
relevant Canadian Securities Commissions.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
and remain alert for indications that the other information appears to be materially misstated.
We obtained the information included in Management’s Discussion and Analysis filed with
the relevant Canadian Securities Commissions. If, based on the work we have performed
on this other information, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact in the auditors’ report.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity‘s financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.



Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.



Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to
continue as a going concern.



Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.



Provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Chartered Professional Accountants
The Engagement Partner on the audit resulting in this auditors’ report is Jamie O’Neil.
Halifax, Canada
April 27, 2020
43

April 27, 2020

Management’s Report

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of ViveRE Communities Inc. are the
responsibility of management and have been approved by the Board of Directors. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). The consolidated financial statements include certain amounts and
assumptions that are based on management’s best estimates and have been derived with careful judgment.
In fulfilling its responsibilities, management has developed and maintains a system of internal accounting
controls. These controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial records are
reliable for preparation of the consolidated financial statements. The Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors reviewed and approved the Company’s consolidated financial statements and recommended
their approval by the Board of Directors.
KPMG LLP, appointed as the Company’s auditors by the shareholders, have examined these consolidated
financial statements and their report follows.

(signed) “Michael Anaka”
Chief Executive Officer
Halifax, Nova Scotia

(signed) “Glenn Holmes”
Chief Financial Officer
Halifax, Nova Scotia
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ViveRE Communities Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
December 31,
2019
$

December 31,
2018
$

Assets
Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable
Deposits and prepaids (note 5)

Investment properties (note 6)

133,848
14,004
121,207

104,659
7,911
43,750

269,059

156,320

18,209,620

5,228,432

18,478,679

5,384,752

398,462
858,590
345,162

390,308
–
58,072

1,602,214

448,380

487,625
11,894,139

486,476
3,194,510

13,983,978

4,129,366

4,494,701

1,255,386

18,478,679

5,384,752

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 7)
Convertible debentures (note 8)
Current portion of mortgage payable (note 9)

Convertible debentures (note 8)
Mortgages payable (note 9)

Equity

Nature of operations and going concern (note 1)
Subsequent events (note 15)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements.
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ViveRE Communities Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
(expressed in Canadian dollars)
Year ended
December 31,
2019
$

Year ended
December 31,
2018
$

1,089,545

157,492

Property operating expenses
Operating expenses

464,368

60,567

Net property operating income

625,177

96,925

680,389
71,205
19,279
11,497
43,575
20,000
22,882
868,827

479,461
33,316
13,097
32,132
183,694
–
16,236
757,936

428,876
76,961
341,036
846,873

103,302
18,803
74,343
196,448

356,781

49,949

–
–
–

180,000
(159,472)
20,528

Net loss before income taxes
Deferred income tax recovery

(1,447,304)
41,000

(927,936)
236,000

Net loss and comprehensive loss for the
years

(1,406,304)

(691,936)

($0.04)

($0.05)

39,661,664

15,101,037

Revenue
Rental income

Administrative expenses
Consulting fees
Filing and other fees
Insurance
Office and other
Professional fees
Stock-based compensation (note 10)
Travel

Finance costs
Interest expense
Amortization expense (notes 8 and 9)
Accretion expense (note 8)

Depreciation expense (note 6)
Other expense (income)
Loss on settlement of Bridge Loans
Gain on settlement of accounts payable

Loss per share - basic and diluted
Weighted average outstanding common
shares – basic and diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements
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ViveRE Communities Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the year ended December 31, 2019
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

Balance – December 31, 2018
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the
year
Shares issued for cash, net of issue costs
Broker warrants issued pursuant to
financing
Shares issued for cash, exercise of
warrants (note 10(b))
Shares issued in settlement of accounts
payable, net of issue costs (notes
10(f) and 10(g))
Shares issued pursuant to acquisition of
Village View No. 2 Limited
Partnership
Shares issued in settlement of interest
payable on convertible debentures
net of issue costs
Stock-based compensation (note 10(c))
Convertible debentures issued, net of
issue costs (note 8(b))
Warrants issued pursuant to financing, net
of issue costs (note 10(d))
Balance – December 31, 2019

Convertible
debentures
$

Contributed
surplus
$

Deficit
$

Total
$

526,000

323,567

332,500

(7,303,682)

1,255,386

3,005,505

–

–

–

(1,406,304)
–

(1,406,304)
3,005,505

–

(90,000)

90,000

–

–

–

–

2,499,998

480,000

(180,000)

–

–

–

300,000

3,376,326

589,115

–

–

–

–

589,115

1,000,000

200,000

–

–

–

–

200,000

523,150
–

71,099
–

–
–

–
–

–
20,000

–
–

71,099
20,000

–

–

–

271,300

–

–

271,300

–

–

188,600

–

–

–

188,600

49,189,824

11,632,720

624,600

594,867

352,500

(8,709,986)

4,494,701

Number of
shares

Share capital
$

24,211,250

7,377,001

–
17,579,100

Warrants
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements
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ViveRE Communities Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
For the year ended December 31, 2018
(expressed in Canadian dollars)

Balance – December 31, 2017
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the
year
Bonus warrants issued
Shares issued in settlement of debt
obligations
Shares and warrants issued for cash, net of
issue costs
Shares issued pursuant to acquisition of
investment property
Shares issued in settlement of interest
payable on convertible debentures net
of issue costs
Convertible debentures issued
Broker warrants issued pursuant to
financing
Advisor’s warrants issued
Balance – December 31, 2018

Convertible
debentures
$

Contributed
surplus
$

Deficit
$

Total
$

–

332,500

(6,611,746)

(347,850)

–
180,000

–
–

–
–

(691,936)
–

(691,936)
180,000

731,221

–

–

–

–

731,221

7,170,067

629,212

261,000

–
–

–

–

890,212

666,667

100,000

–

–

–

100,000

106,094
–

15,172
–

–
–
24,211,250

Number of
shares

Share capital
$

Warrants
$

10,092,947

5,931,396

–

–
–

–
–

6,175,475

–

355,742

–

–

15,172
355,742

(30,000)
–

60,000
25,000

(17,550)
(14,625)

–
–

–
–

12,450
10,375

7,377,001

526,000

323,567

332,500

(7,303,682)

1,255,386

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these audited consolidated financial statements
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2019
$

2018
$

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the years
Charges to income not affecting cash
Interest on convertible debentures and mortgage payable
Stock-based compensation expense
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Accretion expense
Loss on settlement of Bridge Loans
Gain on settlement of accounts payable
Deferred income tax recovery

Net changes in non-cash working capital balances related to operations
Increase in amounts receivable
Increase in deposits and prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, net of amount
settled through share issuances

Financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of warrants
Proceeds from issuance of common shares, net of issue costs
Proceeds from issuance of Convertible Debentures, net of issue costs
Proceeds from Bridge Loans
Advances from shareholders, net of repayments
Proceeds from mortgage financing, net of deferred finance costs
Repayments of mortgage principal

(1,406,304)

(691,936)

147,434
20,000
356,781
76,961
341,036
–
–
(41,000)

51,940
–
49,949
18,803
74,343
180,000
(159,472)
(236,000)

(505,092)

(712,373)

(6,093)
(77,457)

–
(33,750)

528,030

494,598

(60,612)

(251,525)

300,000
3,005,505
728,300
–
–
4,048,188
(193,271)

–
890,212
1,012,378
350,000
36,324
3,262,255
(14,154)

7,888,722

5,537,015

(7,798,921)

(5,178,381)

Investing activities
Acquisition of investment properties

Net change in cash for the years

29,189

107,109

Cash – Beginning of year

104,659

Cash – End of year

133,848

104,659

101,848
32,000
133,848

72,659
32,000
104,659

(2,450)

Cash is comprised of
Cash on deposit with banks
Cash held in trust (note 8)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1

Nature of operations and going concern
Nature of operations
ViveRE Communities Inc. (the "Company") was incorporated under the Canada Business Corporations Act on
August 9, 2011 and the common shares of the Company commenced trading on the TSX Venture Exchange
(“TSXV” or the “Exchange”) on March 14, 2012, as a mining issuer.
On August 23, 2018 the Company completed a change of business transaction whereby it acquired all of the real
property located at 41 Noel Avenue, Saint John, New Brunswick (“41 Noel Avenue”) (the “Transaction”). 41 Noel
Avenue is a multi-unit residential property totaling 31 units. Concurrently, the Company changed its name to
ViveRE Communities Inc.
During 2019 the Company acquired Village View No. 2 Limited Partnership (“Village View”), whose sole asset is
a multi-family rental property totalling 42 units located at 50 Noel Avenue, Saint John, New Brunswick, as well
as, two 23-unit multi-family rental properties located at 542 and 550 Ryan Street, Moncton, New Brunswick
(“Ryan Street Properties”) .
The Company’s business is the ownership and management of multi-unit residential real estate.
Going concern
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) applicable to a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and the settlement
of liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. There are material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the appropriateness of the going concern assumption, as the Company has incurred losses
and negative cash flows from operations since completing the change of business transaction.
The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern, and to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities
when due, is dependent upon its ability to secure sufficient financing to fund ongoing operations. During the year,
the Company completed a short form prospectus offering raising gross proceeds of $2,845,367 and a private
placement units offering raising gross proceeds of $1,475,000. Subsequent to year end, as more fully explained
in note 15, the Company raised additional financing and closed the acquisition of an additional 124 rental units.
Management cannot provide assurance that the Company will ultimately achieve profitable operations, become
cash flow positive, or raise additional debt and/or equity capital to fund additional acquisitions of investment
properties.
These consolidated financial statements do not reflect adjustments that would be necessary if the going concern
assumption were not appropriate. If the going concern basis was not appropriate for these consolidated financial
statements, then adjustments would be necessary to the carrying value of assets and liabilities, the reported
revenues and expenses, and the statement of financial position classifications used.
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2

Basis of presentation
Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards.
The Board of Directors approved the consolidated financial statements for issue on April 27, 2020.
Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis.

3

Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are as
follows:
Basis of Consolidation
The financial statements of the Company consolidate the accounts of the Company and the following
subsidiaries that hold investment properties and their related liabilities:
Company
10664316 Canada Inc.
11295594 Canada Inc.
11295608 Canada Inc.
Village View 2 Limited Partnership
3329586 Nova Scotia Ltd.

Country of
incorporation
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada
Canada

All subsidiaries are 100% owned.
Inter-group transactions and balances are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The
consolidated financial statements reflect the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of ViveRE
and its subsidiaries.
Property acquisitions
Where property is acquired, management considers the substance of the agreement in determining whether the
acquisition represents the acquisition of property or a business combination.
Where such acquisitions are not judged to be a business combination, they are treated as asset acquisitions.
The cost to acquire the property, including transaction costs, is allocated between the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on the relative fair values at the acquisition date. Otherwise,
acquisitions are accounted for as a business combination.
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3

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investment properties
Investment properties are comprised of properties held to earn rental revenue or for capital appreciation or
both. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Transaction costs
include transfer taxes, and professional fees for legal services.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses in accordance with IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment.
Significant components of the buildings have different useful lives and are accounted for as separate
components of the property. The cost of replacing a major component of a building is recognized in the
carrying amount of the building if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced component is derecognized. The costs of ongoing repairs and maintenance of the properties are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
Depreciation is recorded in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
components of the investment properties as follows.
Building
Furniture and equipment

20 to 40 years
20 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
Note 6 discloses the fair value of the investment properties. The following approach is used by management, in
their determination of the fair value of investment properties:
― The Direct Comparison Approach involves comparing or contrasting the recent sale, listing or optioned prices
of properties comparable to the subject and adjusting for any significant differences between them.
Management reviews independent appraisals when obtained for properties, to ensure the assumptions used
by the appraisers are reasonable. The fair value amount determined by management and disclosed in note 6
reflects those assumptions used in the approaches above.
An investment property is derecognized when it has been disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognized in the statement of income and comprehensive income in the period of
retirement or disposal.
Revenue recognition
Rental revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease subject to ultimate collection
being reasonably assured.
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3

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indications exist, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group
of assets which generates cash inflows from continuing use that is largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating-unit” or “CGU”).
Convertible debentures
Upon issuance, convertible debentures are separated into the debt and conversion feature components. The
debt component of the convertible debenture is recognized initially at fair value of a similar debt instrument
without a conversion feature. Subsequent to initial recognition, the debt component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The conversion feature of the convertible debentures is initially recognized at fair value. The convertible
debentures are convertible into units of the Company at the holder’s option. As a result of this obligation, the
convertible debentures are convertible into equity, and accordingly, the conversion feature component of the
convertible debentures is also equity.
Share options and warrants
The Company has a share option plan available for officers, employees, and consultants. The fair value based
method of accounting is applied to all share-based compensation. Compensation expense is recognized when
share options are granted over the vesting periods. Awards of share options and warrants related to private
placements or public offerings of shares are treated as share issue costs.
The fair value of share options and warrants granted is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model and is recorded as an expense over the applicable vesting period based on the number of
awards expected to vest. Each tranche of an award is considered a separate award within its own vesting period
and grant date fair value. On the exercise of share options, the consideration received and the grant date fair
value of the option is credited to share capital.
Share capital
For equity-settled share-based payment transactions, the Company measures the goods or services received,
and the corresponding increase in equity, directly, at the fair value of the goods or services received, unless that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably. If the Company cannot estimate reliably the fair value of the goods or
services received, the Company shall measure their value, and the corresponding increase in equity, indirectly,
by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
Transaction costs related to the issuance of the shares are recognized directly in shareholders’ equity as a
reduction of the proceeds received.
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3

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income or loss per share
Basic income or loss per share is calculated by dividing the income or loss by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period.
Income taxes
The Company is subject to tax under Part I of the Income Tax Act of Canada and is subject to the general rate
applicable on Canadian corporations. Current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
(i) Current income taxes
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in Canada, where the Company and its subsidiary operates. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions, where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
(ii) Deferred income taxes
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Significant accounting judgments and estimates
Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
Judgments:
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following critical
judgments, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements:
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Significant accounting judgments and estimates (continued)
Asset acquisitions
At the time of acquisition of real estate properties, the Company considers whether or not the acquisition
represents the acquisition of a business. The Company accounts for an acquisition as a business combination
where an integrated set of activities is acquired in addition to the property. When the acquisition of a property
does not represent a business, it is accounted for as an asset acquisition. The cost of the acquisition, including
transaction costs, is allocated to the assets and liabilities acquired based on their relative fair values, and no
goodwill or deferred tax is recognized.
The acquisition of each of the Company’s investment properties were determined to be an asset acquisitions.
Investment properties:
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses in accordance with IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment. In applying this
policy, judgment is applied to determine the significant components of each property, including the useful lives
over which the componentized assets are to be amortized.
Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets and liabilities
Initial measurement and classification
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial
liability is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost or Fair Value Through
Profit and Loss (“FVTPL”) while a debt instrument is recognized at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”) or FVTPL.
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as
at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or if it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at
amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
at amortized cost

These financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

The Company’s financial instruments include cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities, convertible debentures and mortgages payable, all of which are subsequently measured at
amortized cost.
(ii) Fair value measurement:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy establishes three
levels to classify the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.
Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs are quoted prices in markets that are not active, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities
in active markets, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability (for example,
interest rate and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals, forward pricing curves used to value
currency and commodity contracts, volatility measurements used to value option contracts and observable
credit default swap spreads to adjust for credit risk where appropriate), or inputs that are derived principally
from or corroborated by observable market data or other means.
Level 3: Inputs are unobservable (supported by little or no market activity).
The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.
Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at
amortized cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to the lifetime ECLs in
accordance with the ‘simplified approach’ available under the standard. Under this approach, loss
allowances on trade accounts receivable are always measured at lifetime ECLs.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and
includes forward-looking information.
The Company assumes that the credit risk on financial assets has increased if it is more than 30 days past
due. The Company considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent
to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

4

New accounting standards not yet adopted
The IASB issued the following standards that has not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements as their effective date falls within annual periods beginning subsequent to the current reporting
period.
IAS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 – Accounting Policies, Changes in Estimates and
Errors
On October 31, 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. These amendments clarify the definition of
‘material’ and aligns the definition used within the IFRS Standards. The effective date of the amendment is for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 and is to be applied prospectively. The application of this
amendment is not expected to have a material impact to the Company.
IFRS 3 – Business Combinations
On October 22, 2018 the IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 3 Business Combinations to narrow the definition
of a business and introduce a screening test, which eliminates the requirement for a detailed assessment of the
definition, when met. The effective date of the amendment is for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2020 and is to be applied prospectively. The application of this amendment is not expected to have a material
impact to the Company.

5

Deposits and prepaids

Deposits relating to buildings under agreement
Prepaid property taxes
Prepaid insurance
Other

December 31,
2019
$

December 31,
2018
$

–
86,834
26,681
7,692

20,000
21,025
–
2,725

121,207

43,750
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6

Investment properties
Each of the investment properties acquired by the Company were not considered a business for accounting
purposes, and therefore, the acquisitions were considered to be asset purchases. The only assets acquired were
the investment properties. No personnel or processes were acquired, and given the Company changed from a
resource company to a real estate entity, processes in support of the real estate business are being created rather
than integrated. Furthermore, the acquired investment properties do not have any processes to support the
revenue being generated as there is a contract in place with external parties to provide property management
services.
Consolidated investment properties at December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are summarized below.
December 31,
2019
$

December 31,
2018
$

Balance, beginning of year
Cost of acquisitions
Depreciation

5,228,432
13,337,969
(356,781)

–
5,278,381
(49,949)

Balance - end of year

18,209,620

5,228,432

On August 23, 2018, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, 10664316 Canada Inc., completed the acquisition
of 41 Noel Avenue. The acquired property consists of a 31-unit multi-family apartment building constructed in
2014. The acquisition cost was comprised of the purchase price of $5,161,500 plus standard closing costs and
adjustments aggregating $116,881.
The acquisition cost of 41 Noel Avenue was allocated to the fair value of the assets acquired as follows.
$
Land
Building
Furniture and equipment

480,517
4,752,314
45,550

Investment property acquisition cost recorded

5,278,381

The acquisition of 41 Noel Avenue was financed as follows.
$
Mortgage financing, net of costs
Cash
Shares issued to vendors

3,262,255
1,916,126
100,000
5,278,381
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Investment properties (continued)
The Company has recorded the investment property on an amortized cost basis.
Land

Building

Furniture and
equipment

Total

Acquisition cost
Less: depreciation for the year
Net book value at December 31, 2018
Less: depreciation for the year

$
480,517
–
480,517
–

$
4,752,314
46,704
4,705,610
132,947

$
45,550
3,245
42,305
8,461

$
5,278,381
49,949
5,228,432
141,408

Net book value at December 31, 2019

480,517

4,572,663

33,844

5,087,024

On April 11, 2019, the Company completed the acquisition of Village View No. 2 Limited Partnership (“Village
View”). The purchase price for Village View was $7,900,000, subject to customary adjustments, which was paid
with the assumption of the $5,339,048 existing 2.55% APR (annual percentage rate) property mortgage,
maturing September 2026 with respect to the Noel Property and the issuance of 1,000,000 common shares of
the Company to the vendors at a price of $0.20 per common share and the balance in cash.
The Acquisition was structured as a purchase of all the general partner interests of Village View held by SBLS
Holdings Inc., a corporation incorporated under the law of the Province of New Brunswick, and all of the limited
partnership interests of Village View held by 621946 N.B. Inc., a corporation incorporated under the law of the
Province of New Brunswick, Anron Inc., a corporation incorporated under the law of the Province of New
Brunswick, and Residential Investors and Developers Ltd., a corporation incorporated under the law of the
Province of New Brunswick. The acquisition is an arm's length transaction.
The acquisition cost of Village View was allocated to the fair value of the assets acquired as follows.
$
Land
200,060
Building
7,466,945
Furniture and equipment
93,376
Investment property acquisition cost recorded

7,760,381

The acquisition of Village View was financed as follows.
$
5,323,175
2,237,206
200,000

Mortgage assumed, net of costs
Cash
Shares issued to vendors

7,760,381
The Company has recorded the investment property on an amortized cost basis.
Land

Building

Furniture and
equipment

Total

Acquisition cost
Less: depreciation for the year

$
200,060
–

$
7,466,945
161,536

$
93,376
18,675

$
7,760,381
180,211

Net book value at December 31, 2019

200,060

7,305,409

74,701

7,580,170
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Investment properties (continued)
On October 3, 2019, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, 3329586 Nova Scotia Limited., completed the
acquisition of the Ryan Street Properties for an aggregate purchase price of $5,488,000 subject to customary
adjustments. ViveRE placed a collateral mortgage in the amount of $4,115,785 with the balance of the purchase
price payable in cash from the proceeds of a non-brokered private placement financing that ViveRE closed on
September 30, 2019. The mortgage bears a fixed annual interest rate of 3.45% and has a term of 5 years with
monthly principal and interest payments of $20,440.
The acquisition cost of the Ryan Street Properties was allocated to the fair value of the assets acquired as follows.
$
Land
Building

482,851
5,094,735

Investment property acquisition cost recorded

5,577,586

The acquisition of the Ryan Street Properties was financed as follows.
$
Mortgage financing, net of costs
Cash

4,071,631
1,505,955
5,577,586

The Company has recorded the investment property on an amortized cost basis.
Land

7

Building

Total

Acquisition cost
Less: depreciation for the year

$
482,851
–

$
5,094,735
35,162

$
5,577,586
35,162

Net book value at December 31, 2019

482,851

5,059,573

5,542,424

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

December 31,
2019
$

December 31,
2018
$

223,869
174,593

273,298
117,010

398,462

390,308

As at December 31, 2019, $112,632 (December 31, 2018, $113,144) of accounts payable and accrued liabilities is
due to corporations owned by officers and directors of the Company and is related to consulting fees (note 12).
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Convertible debentures

2018 Convertible debentures
2019 Convertible debentures
Less: current portion

December 31,
2019
$

December 31,
2018
$

858,590
487,625

486,476
–

1,346,215
(858,590)

486,476
–

487,625

486,476

a) 2018 Convertible debentures
On August 22, 2018, the Company completed the private placement of 800 Series A ($800,000) and 500
Series B ($500,000) convertible debentures (the “Debentures”) for aggregate gross proceeds of $1,300,000.
The Debentures are secured against certain assets of the Company and its subsidiary, are for a 2-year term
and bear interest at a rate of 12%, payable on a quarterly basis, half in common shares and half in cash. The
Debentures are convertible into units of the Company at a price of $0.15 per unit, such units consisting of
one common share in the capital of the Company and one common share purchase warrant, each such
warrant entitling the holder to acquire one common share for a period of 24 months from the date of issuance
of the warrant at a price of $0.175 per common share.
For accounting purposes, the Debentures are separated into their liability and equity components. The fair
value of the equity portion of the convertible debentures of $760,000 was calculated using partial differential
equation methods taking into account the added value of the warrants issued as part of the convertible unit.
The assumptions used in the valuation model include; share price $0.12, expected volatility 107%, risk free
interest rate 2.04%, credit spread 60% and all-in rate 62.04%. The fair value allocated to the equity
component of the Debentures is offset by deferred taxes of $236,000.
The fair value of the liability component of the Debentures was determined at time of issue as the difference
between the face value of the Debentures and the fair value of the equity component.
Financing costs of $342,622, including $60,000 of the gross proceeds that were allocated to 681,572 broker
warrants and $25,000 that was allocated to advisors’ warrants, were incurred and have been recorded pro
rata against the equity ($200,433) and liability ($142,189) components. The liability component is
measured at amortized cost and will be accreted to the $1,300,000 maturity amount over the term using the
effective interest method. For the year ended December 31, 2019, amortization of transaction costs of
$58,647 was recorded (December 31, 2018 - $14,321).
For the year ended December 31, 2019, interest expense of $156,000 (December 31, 2018 - $55,405) and
accretion expense of $313,467 (December 31, 2018 - $74,343) have been recorded.
The Company has placed $32,00o in trust as security for future interest payments on the Series A
Debentures.
Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the 2018 convertible debentures were converted into equity units (note
15).
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Convertible debentures (continued)
b) 2019 Convertible debentures
On September 30, 2019, the Company completed the private placement of $737,500 convertible debentures
(“Debentures”) as part of a non-brokered Units Offering (note 10 b). The Debentures are unsecured, have a 2year term and bear interest at a rate of 7%, payable annually. The debentures are convertible into common shares
of the Company at the option of the holder, in full or in part, at a price of $0.25 per common share. The Company
has the option to redeem the Debentures in full with the issuance of common shares at a price of $0.25 per
common share. Also, the Company has the option to force the conversion of the Debentures in the event of a
change of control event.
For accounting purposes, the Debentures are separated into their liability and equity components. The fair value
of the equity portion of the convertible debentures of $316,000 was calculated using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The assumptions used in the valuation model include; share price $0.19, expected volatility 150%,
risk free interest rate 2.25% and a dividend yield of 0%. The fair value allocated to the equity component of the
Debentures is offset by issuance costs of $3,700 and deferred taxes of $41,000.
The fair value of the liability component of the Debentures was determined at time of issue as the pro rata
difference between the face value of the Debentures and the fair value of the equity component, taking into
account the added value of the warrants issued as part of the Units Offering. The liability component is measured
at amortized cost and will be accreted to the $737,500 maturity amount over the term using the effective interest
method.
For the year ended December 31, 2019, interest expense of $13,000, accretion expense of $27,569 and
amortization expense of $556 have been recorded.
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9

Mortgages payable
December 31,
2019
$

December 31,
2018
$

Mortgage payable bears a fixed interest rate of 4.097%
maturing August 23, 2021. The loan is being amortized
over 30 years, is payable in monthly payments of
$15,874, principal and interest, and is secured by a first
charge over 41 Noel Avenue.

3,227,774

3,285,846

Mortgage payable bears a fixed interest rate of 2.55%
maturing September 1, 2026. The loan is being
amortized over 25 years, is payable in monthly payments
of $25,901, principal and interest, and is secured by a
first charge over 50 Noel Avenue.

4,996,253

–

Mortgage payable bears a fixed interest rate of 3.45%
maturing October 10, 2024. The loan is being amortized
over 25 years, is payable in monthly payments of
$20,440, principal and interest, and is secured by a first
charge over 542 and 550 Ryan Street.

4,098,377

–

12,322,404

3,285,846

Less: deferred financing costs net of accumulated
amortization of $17,412 (December 31, 2018 - $4,481)
Less: current portion

(83,103)
(345,162)
11,894,139

(33,264)
(58,072)
3,194,510

The Company assumed the 50 Noel Avenue mortgage payable in the amount of $5,339,048 in connection with
the acquisition of Village View on April 11, 2019. The initial fair value of the mortgage payable at recognition
was $5,114,004.
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10 Share capital
a) Authorized capital stock
Unlimited number of common shares, without nominal or par value
Unlimited number of preferred shares, without nominal or par value, issuable in one or more series
# of shares

Amount
$

10,092,947

5,931,396

7,170,067
666,667
–
6,175,475
106,094

629,212
100,000
(30,000)
731,221
15,172

Balance – December 31, 2018

24,211,250

7,377,001

Shares issued for cash, net of issue costs
Broker warrants issued pursuant to financing
Shares issued for cash, exercise of warrants
Shares issued pursuant to acquisition of Village View
Shares issued in settlement of debt obligations, net of issue costs
Shares issued in exchange for interest on debenture, net of issue costs

17,579,100
–
2,499,998
1,000,000
3,376,326
523,150

3,005,505
(90,000)
480,000
200,000
589,115
71,099

Balance – December 31, 2019

49,189,824

11,632,720

Common shares issued and fully paid
Balance – December 31, 2017
Shares issued for cash, net of share issue costs
Shares issued pursuant to acquisition of 41 Noel Avenue
Broker Warrants issued pursuant to financings
Shares issued in settlement of debt obligations
Shares issued in exchange for interest on debenture, net of issue costs

b) Equity financings
On September 10, 2018, the Exchange issued final approval for the Change of Business Transaction and
concurrent financings, and pursuant to Exchange regulations a total of 2,360,165 common shares were
subject to a Tier 1 value escrow agreement and a total of 5,366,457 common shares, 2,883,332 warrants and
$775,000 of convertible debentures were subject to a Tier 2 value escrow agreement. On the date of
Exchange approval, 25% of the Tier 1 securities and 10% of the Tier 2 securities were released. The remaining
Tier 1 and Tier 2 escrowed securities are released every nine months at the rate of 25% and 10% respectively.
At December 31, 2019, 596,075 common shares were subject to the Tier 1 value escrow agreement and
3,219,875 common shares, 1,729,999 warrants and $465,000 of convertible debentures were subject to the
Tier 2 value escrow agreement.
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10 Share capital (continued)
b) Equity financings (continued)
On April 9, 2019, the Company completed a short form prospectus offering of 14,226,834 common shares at
a price of $0.20 per Common Share for aggregate gross proceeds of $2,845,367. The Offering was completed
by Echelon Wealth Partners Inc. and Industrial Alliance Securities Inc. (collectively the “Agents”). A portion
of the gross proceeds of the Offering was used to finance the acquisition of Village View (note 6). The
Company paid the Agents a cash commission of $97,196 and issued to the Agents 485,980 non-transferable
share purchase warrants (each, an "Agent Warrant"), with each Agent Warrant exercisable into one common
share of the Company at an exercise price equal to $0.20 for a period of 24 months from the date hereof. The
capital stock value of the 14,226,834 shares issued is net of the warrants valuation of $90,000 and share
issue costs of $336,463.
On September 30, 2019, the Company closed a non-brokered private placement offering (the "Offering") of
Tier 1 and Tier 2 Units ("Units"). A total of nineteen Tier 1 units were sold at a price of $25,000 per Tier 1
unit and four Tier 2 units at a price of $250,000 per Tier 2 unit for aggregate gross proceeds of $1,475,000.
Each Tier 1 Unit is comprised of 56,818 common shares of ViveRE and a $12,500 convertible debenture. The
debenture is convertible to common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.25 per share. Each Tier 2 Unit is
comprised of 568,181 common shares of ViveRE and a $125,000 convertible debenture. Each Tier 2 unit also
includes 500,000 common share purchase warrants, exercisable at a price of $0.25 per share for a period of
two years after the closing date. The capital stock value of the 3,352,266 shares issued is net of the warrants
valuation of $191,000 and share issue costs of $2,400.
c) Options
The Company has a common share purchase option plan (the "Plan") for directors, officers, employees and
consultants. The total number of options issued and outstanding at any time cannot exceed 10% of the issued
and outstanding common shares of the Company unless shareholder and regulatory approvals are obtained.
The exercise price of the stock options is determined by the Board of Directors when the options are granted,
but it cannot be less than the closing price of the Company’s shares on the TSXV on the business day
immediately preceding the day on which the option is granted. The maximum exercise period of the stock
options is ten years.
In determining the stock-based compensation expense, the fair value of options issued is estimated at the
grant date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Option pricing models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the expected volatility. Changes in the assumptions can materially affect
the fair value estimate, and therefore, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable measure of
the fair value of the Company’s stock options.
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10 Share capital (continued)
c) Options (continued)
The weighted average assumptions used in the pricing model for options issued during the year ended
December 31, 2019, are as follows:
2.25%
150%
$nil
10 years

Risk-free interest rate
Expected volatility
Expected dividend yield
Expected life

The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s stock options for the years ended December
31, 2019 and 2018:
Weighted
Weighted
average
average
exercise Number of
remaining life
options
price
(years)
Expiry date
$
Balance – December 31, 2018
–
Granted during the year

0.12

200,000

9.1

Balance – December 31, 2019

0.12

200,000

9.1

January 21, 2029

As at December 31, 2019, 4,648,365 options remained available for future grants under the Plan. Options
vested and exercisable at December 31, 2019 totaled 200,000 with an average exercise price of $0.12 per
share. The weighted average grant-date fair value per option was $0.10 for the stock options granted during
the year. The Company charged $20,000 in non-cash share-based compensation expense to operations for
the year ended December 31, 2019 (December 31, 2018 – $nil).
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10 Share capital (continued)
d)

Warrants
The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s warrants for the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018:
Expiry date

Exercise
price
$

Balance – December 31, 2017
Warrants issued pursuant to Bridge Loans
Warrants issued pursuant to private
placement financing
Warrants issued pursuant to vendor takeback financing
Broker Warrants issued pursuant to private
placement financing
Advisor’s warrants issued in connection with
the Transaction

Balance – December 31, 2019

Ascribed
value
$

–

–

May 30, 2019

0.12

2,499,998

180,000

August 23, 2020

0.25

3,585,030

239,000

August 23, 2020

0.25

333,333

22,000

August 23, 2020

0.15

681,572

60,000

August 23, 2020

0.15

300,000

25,000

7,399,933

526,000

0.12

(2,499,998)

(180,000)

0.20
0.25

485,980
2,000,000

90,000
188,600

7,385,915

624,600

Balance – December 31, 2018
Warrants exercised during year
Broker warrants issued pursuant to private
placement financing
Warrants issued pursuant to Units Offering

Number

April 9, 2021
September 30, 2021

The fair value of the Warrants issued on May 30, 2018 in connection with Bridge Loans aggregating
$300,000 has been estimated at the issue date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The weighted
average assumptions used in the pricing model are as follows; share price $0.15, risk-free rate 2.04%,
expected volatility 107%, expected dividend yield $nil and expected life 1 year.
The fair value of the warrants issued pursuant to the private placement financing and the vendor take-back
financing, along with the Broker Warrants issued pursuant to the private placement financing and the
advisor’s warrants issued pursuant to convertible debenture financing, have been estimated at the issue date
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The weighted average assumptions used in the pricing model
are as follows; share price $0.15, risk-free rate 2.04%, expected volatility 107%, expected dividend yield $nil
and expected life 2 years.
The fair value of the broker warrants issued pursuant to the April 9, 2019 financing has been estimated at
the issue date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The weighted average assumptions used in the
pricing model are as follows; share price $0.245, risk-free rate 2.25%, expected volatility 150%, expected
dividend yield $nil and expected life 2 years.
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10 Share capital (continued)
d)

Warrants (continued)
The fair value of the warrants issued pursuant to the September 30, 2019 Units Offering has been estimated
at the issue date using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The weighted average assumptions used in
the pricing model are as follows; share price $0.19, risk-free rate 2.25%, expected volatility 157%, expected
dividend yield $nil and expected life 2 years.

e)

Contributed surplus
Balance – December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018
Stock-based compensation
Balance – December 31, 2019

f)

$
332,500
20,000
352,500

Shares for debt and debenture interest
During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company recorded the issuance of 1,605,876 common shares
to settle outstanding indebtedness aggregating $230,815 of which 1,318,036 were issued to non-arm’s length
parties to settle $168,165 of indebtedness. 254,090 of these common shares were not issued as at December
31, 2019, however, for accounting purposes the shares are recorded as being outstanding at that date as the
significant conditions for issuance have been satisfied. The capital stock value of the common shares is net
of issue costs of $4,600.
During the year December 31, 2019, the Company recorded the issuance of 523,150 common shares to settle
$77,999 of convertible debenture interest payable. 114,965 of these common shares were not issued as at
December 31, 2019, however, for accounting purposes the shares are recorded as being outstanding at that
date as the significant conditions for issuance have been satisfied. The capital stock value of the common
shares is net of issue costs of $6,900.
These are non-cash transactions and accordingly have been excluded from the statement of cash flows.

g)

Shares for services
The Company received disinterested shareholder approval at the annual and special meeting of shareholders
of the Company held on May 31, 2019, to issue common shares of the Company to a number of officers,
directors and consultants (collectively the “Consultants”) for ongoing services pursuant to advisory and
consulting agreements up to an amount of $110,000 every three months in accordance with the provisions
of Exchange Policy 4.3, article 5 – Shares for Services. Each of the consultants are non-arm’s length to the
Company. The common shares for ongoing services will only be issued after the services are performed by
the Consultants. The deemed price of the common shares to be issued will be determined at the end of each
three month period at market price after the services are provided by the Consultants.
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10 Share capital (continued)
g)

Shares for services (continued)
The first three month period ended on February 28, 2019 for which an aggregate 550,000 common shares
were issued at a deemed price of $0.20 per share. The second three month period ended May 31, 2019 for
which an aggregate 550,000 common shares were issued at a deemed price of $0.20 per share. The third
period was shortened to the two months ended July 31, 2019 for which an aggregate of 333,331 common
shares were issued issued at a price of $0.22 to settle outstanding indebtedness aggregating $73,333. The
fourth period was for the three months ended October 31, 2019 for which an aggregate 591,209 common
shares are issuable at a deemed price of $0.22 per share. These common shares were not issued as at
December 31, 2019, however, for accounting purposes the shares are recorded as being outstanding at
December 31, 2019, as the significant conditions for issuance have been satisfied. The capital stock value of
the common shares is net of issue costs of $4,600.
These are non-cash transactions and accordingly have been excluded from the statement of cash flows.

11 Income taxes
At December 31, 2019, the Company’s effective income tax rate differs from the amount that would be
computed from applying the federal and provincial statutory rate of 31% to the pre-tax loss for the period. The
reasons for the difference are as follows:

Computed tax recovery at the statutory rates
Changes in tax assets related to deductible temporary differences and
unused tax losses not recognized
Tax effect of permanent differences

December 31,
2019
$

December 31,
2018
$

(449,000)

(288,000)

358,000

(4,000)

50,000

56,000

(41,000)

(236,000)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
(liabilities) are presented below:

Convertible debentures
Non-capital losses

December 31,
2019
$

December 31,
2018
$

(96,000)
96,000

(213,000)
213,000

–

–
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11 Income taxes (continued)
A deferred tax liability arose from the equity portion of the convertible debentures issued during the year. There
is a deferred tax recovery recorded in the year that offsets the deferred tax liability relating to convertible
debentures.
The Company has the following temporary differences for which no deferred tax asset or liability is recorded:

Financing fees
Investment properties
Non-capital losses

December 31,
2019
$

December 31,
2018
$

704,000
371,000
2,554,000

453,000
50,000
2,640,000

3,629,000

3,143,000

The above noted non-capital losses expire from 2032 to 2039.

12 Related party transactions
a) Compensation of directors and officers

CEO – consulting fees
Executive VP – consulting fees
CFO – consulting fees
Secretary – consulting fees

Year ended
December 31,
2019
$

Year ended
December 31,
2018
$

230,000
80,500
50,614
47,908

82,033
86,250
53,992
–

409,022

222,275

The Company has agreements with two of its officers whereby it has the option to pay consulting fees
aggregating $72,500 per quarter with the issuance of common shares. The deemed price of the common
shares to be issued will be determined at the end of each three month period at market price after the
consulting services are provided. The first three month period ended on February 28, 2019, for which an
aggregate 362,500 common shares were issued at a deemed price of $0.20 per share. The second three
month period ended on May 31, 2019, for which an aggregate 362,500 common shares were issued at a
deemed price of $0.20 per share. The third period was shortened to the two month period ended July 31,
2019, for which an aggregate of 219,696 common shares were issuable at a deemed price of $0.22 per share
to pay consulting fees aggregating $48,333 (note 10g).
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12 Related party transactions (continued)
b)

Advisory services
Advisory services were provided during the year ended December 31, 2019 by a non-executive director and
a corporation owned by two non-executive directors of the Company. The cost of these advisory services
during the year was $151,783 (December 31, 2018 – 59,798).
The Company has agreements with the providers of the advisory services whereby it has the option to pay
advisory fees aggregating $37,500 per quarter with the issuance of common shares. The deemed price of the
common shares to be issued will be determined at the end of each three month period at market price after
the consulting services are provided. The first three month period ended on February 28, 2019, for which an
aggregate 187,500 common shares were issued at a deemed price of $0.20 per share. The second three
month period ended on May 31, 2019, for which an aggregate 187,500 common shares were issued at a
deemed price of $0.20 per share. The third period was shortened to the two month period ended July 31,
2019, for which an aggregate of 113,635 common shares were issuable at a deemed price of $0.22 per share
to pay consulting fees aggregating $25,000 (note 10f).

c)

Convertible debentures
On August 22, 2018, directors subscribed either individually or through corporations they owned to an
aggregate of 1,150,000 units and 825 convertible debentures, with each debenture having a face value of
$1,000, issued by the Company pursuant to private placement financings for aggregate proceeds of
$997,500.
Interest expense incurred on these convertible dentures during the year ended December 31, 2019 totalled
$99,000 (December 31, 2018 – $13,997). Pursuant to the contractual terms of the convertible debentures,
one-half of the quarterly interest expense is payable with the issuance of common shares.

d) Subscription to units
During the year ended December 31, 2019, directors of the Company subscribed, either individually or
through corporations they owned, to an aggregate of nine Tier 1 units for aggregate proceeds of $225,000.
These units comprised 511,362 common shares and $112,500 in debentures.

13 Financial instruments and other
Interest rate risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risks on its borrowings and could be adversely affected if it were unable
to obtain cost-effective financing. The Company’s mortgages payable have maturity dates of August 23, 2021,
October 10, 2024 and September 1, 2026, with fixed annual interest rates of 4.097%, 3.45% and 2.55%
respectively. The Company’s convertible debentures have maturity dates of August 22, 2020 and December 31,
2021, with fixed annual interest rates of 12% and 7% respectively.
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13 Financial instruments and other (continued)
Credit risk
The Company manages credit risk by holding its cash with high quality financial institutions in Canada, where
management believes the risk of loss to be low.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions. The Company must secure financing during 2020 to avoid
disruption in planned expenditures.

14 Additional cash flow information
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities are presented below:
December 31,
2019
$

December 31,
2018
$

Mortgage and convertible debenture – beginning of years

3,739,058

–

Mortgage financing proceeds
Mortgage financing costs
Mortgage repayments
Fair value of convertible debenture issued
Convertible debenture issuance costs

4,115,785
(67,597)
(193,271)
465,000
(5,500)

3,300,000
(37,745)
(14,154)
540,000
(119,364)

Non-cash changes in mortgage and convertible debenture
Mortgage payable assumed on acquisition of Village View, net of costs
Fair value adjustment of mortgage payable assumed
Mortgage financing costs settled with issuance of common shares
Amortization of mortgage financing costs
Accretion of convertible debenture liability
Amortization of convertible debenture costs

5,339,048
(225,004)
–
17,758
341,036
59,203

–
–
(22,885)
4,481
74,343
14,322

13,585,516

3,739,058

Mortgage and convertible debenture– end of years

15 Subsequent events
Bridge loans
On January 20, 2020, the Company issued $150,000 of promissory notes to arm’s length lenders which have a
maximum maturity date of one year. In consideration of the risk to the lenders in respect of the loans extended,
the Company granted 714,000 warrants to the lenders as a loan bonus pursuant to Policy 5.1 of the Exchange.
Each warrant is exercisable into one common share for a period of 12 months from the date of issuance, at an
exercise price of $0.21 per common share.
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15 Subsequent events (continued)
Denaco Properties, Moncton, NB
On February 10, 2020, the Company entered into a definitive purchase and sale agreement to acquire a 100-percent interest in three multiunit residential properties comprised 124 rental units (“Acquisition” or “Denaco
Properties”), located in Moncton, N.B. The properties are located at 150 Lewisville Rd. (55 units), 154 Lewisville
Rd. (34 units) and 39 Pleasant St. (35 units), and are owned by Denaco Group Ltd. (“Denaco”). The transaction
was subsequently completed on March 16, 2020.
ViveRE acquired the Denaco Properties for a purchase price of $13.5 million, subject to customary adjustments
at closing. ViveRE satisfied the purchase price with the issuance to Denaco of 2,083,333 common shares of
ViveRE at a price of $0.24 per share, representing consideration of $500,000, with the balance being paid in
cash.
In connection with the Acquisition, Denis Arsenault (“Arsenault”), the owner of Denaco subscribed for: (i)
7,291,667 common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.24 per common share for aggregate gross proceeds of
$1,750,000; (ii) an unsecured convertible debenture (“Debenture”) in the principal amount of $1,750,000; and
(iii) 7,000,000 common share purchase warrants (“Warrants”), having a 3-year term and an exercise price of
$0.27 per common share (the “Subscription”). The Debenture has a 2-year term, bears interest at the rate 7% per
annum to be paid annually, and is convertible into 6,481,481common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.27 per
common share, assuming full conversion.
ViveRE has placed mortgages on the Denaco Properties in the aggregate amount of $10.125 million having a fixed
annual rate of interest of 2.05% and a 25-year amortization period.
Upon completion of the Subscription and Acquisition, Arsenault, directly or indirectly, owns a total of 9,374,999
common shares of the Issuer representing 13.92% ownership of the issued number of shares. On a fully diluted
basis post-Acquisition, and presuming Arsenault converted the Debenture into 6,481,481 common shares of the
Issuer and also exercised his Warrants for 7,000,000 common shares of ViveRE, then Arsenault would own
22,856,480 common shares of the Issuer representing 28.29% ownership of all of the issued and outstanding
shares of the Issuer. As a condition of the conversion feature of the Debenture and the exercise of the Warrants,
and as required by the policies of the Exchange, management obtained disinterested shareholder approval from
a majority of shareholders in respect of providing approval for Arsenault to exercise his conversion rights under
the Debenture and his exercise rights under the Warrants, and thereby becoming a control person of the
Company as defined under applicable law and the policies of the Exchange.
2018 Convertible Dentures
Concurrent with the completion of the Arsenault Subscription, the holders of the 2018 Debentures converted the
outstanding principal of $1,300,000 into 8,666,662 units, with each unit consisting of one common share and
0.75 warrant, with each full warrant entitling the holder to acquire one common share at a price of $0.175 per
common share until March 16, 2022.
In accordance with the terms of the 2018 Debentures, the Company intends to settle $9,403 of interest payable
for the period February 1 to March 16, 2020, with the issuance of 37,159 common shares at a deemed price per
share of $0.253. The issuance of the common shares is subject to receipt of Exchange approval.
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15 Subsequent events (continued)
75 Emma Street, Oshawa, ON
On January 8, 2020, the Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement to acquire all the shares of Emma
and Albert Development Inc. (“Emma”), whose sole asset is the real property located at 75 Emma Street, Oshawa,
Ontario (the “Emma Street Property”). The Emma Street Property is a newly built multi-unit residential property
totaling 20 units.
ViveRE will acquire Emma for a purchase price of $7,300,000, subject to adjustments at closing. ViveRE will
satisfy the purchase price as follows: a mortgage in the maximum amount of $4,781,000; the issuance to the
vendors of 2,083,333 common shares of ViveRE at a deemed price of $0.24 per share representing consideration
of $500,000; the vendors providing an unsecured vendor take back loan in the amount of $500,000 repayable
in 24 months and bearing interest at 7% per annum, convertible at the option of the vendors into 1,851,851
common shares of ViveRE at a deemed price of $0.27 per common share for 24 months from the closing date;
the issuance of 2,000,000 warrants to acquire common shares of ViveRE at an exercise price of $0.27 per
common share for a term of 24 months from the closing date; the assumption of an existing shareholder loan of
approximately $900,000 and the balance of the purchase price payable in cash from the proceeds of a $1,325,000
private placement financing and cash on hand.
The private placement financing was completed with an effective date of April 16, 2020. A total of thirty-three
Tier 1 units were sold at a price of $25,000 per Tier 1 unit and two Tier 2 units at a price of $250,000 per Tier 2
unit for aggregate gross proceeds of $1,325,000. Each Tier 1 unit comprises 52,083 common shares of ViveRE
and a $12,500 convertible debenture, bearing annual interest of 7% for a term of two years. The debenture is
convertible into common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.27 per share. Each Tier 2 unit comprises 520,833
common shares of ViveRE and a $125,000 convertible debenture, bearing annual interest of 7% for a term of two
years. The debenture is convertible into common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.27 per share. Each Tier 2 unit
also includes 500,000 common share purchase warrants, exercisable at a price of $0.27 per share for a period of
two years from the date of issuance.
The securities issued pursuant to the private placement financing and any common shares issuable thereunder
are subject to a four-month hold period. Directors of the Company subscribed for seven Tier 1 units for aggregate
proceeds of $175,000. The Company paid a cash commission of $21,000 which was equal to 7.0% of the gross
proceeds raised through certain brokers.
On April 27, 2020, the Company completed the Emma acquisition.
ATMJ Properties, Moncton, NB
On February 18, 2020, the Company announced it entered into an exclusive letter of intent to acquire a 100%
interest in ten (10) multi-unit residential properties (the “ATMJ Properties” or the “ATMJ Acquisition”)
comprising 223 units located in Moncton, New Brunswick. The Properties are located at 145-155 McLaughlin
Road, 27 Edmond Street, 50 Maplewood Drive and 2380 Mountain Road, and are owned by ATMJ Properties
Inc. (“ATMJ”).
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15 Subsequent events (continued)
ATMJ Properties, Moncton, NB (continued)
On April 17, 2020, the Company announced it entered into a definitive agreement with ATMJ whereby ViveRE
will acquire the ATMJ Properties for a purchase price of $30 million, subject to customary adjustments at closing.
ViveRE will satisfy the purchase price as follows: (i) the payment to ATMJ of deposits totalling $50,000; (ii) the
issuance to ATMJ of 4,166,667 common shares of ViveRE at a price of $0.24 per share representing consideration
of $1,000,000; (iii) the issuance to ATMJ of an unsecured convertible debenture in the amount of $1,000,000
with a two year term having an interest rate of 7% per annum and convertible into common shares of ViveRE at
a price of $0.27 per share; (iv) the issuance to ATMJ of 4,000,000 common share purchase warrants, having a
3-year term and an exercise price of $0.27 per common share; (v) the placing of a mortgage in the amount of
$23,062,000; and (vi) the balance paid to ATMJ in cash.
The Acquisition is expected to close in May 2020 and is subject to Exchange approval.
ViveRE will undertake a non-brokered private placement financing of up to $7,500,000 in the form of units. Tier
1 and Tier 2 units are comprised of 50% common shares at a price of $0.24 per common share and 50%
convertible debenture, bearing interest at 7%, maturing in 2 years and convertible to common shares of ViveRE
at a price of $0.27 per common share. Tier 1 Units will be offered in amounts of $25,000 per Unit. Tier 2 Units
will be offered in amounts of $250,000 per Unit. Each Tier 2 Unit purchased will also include 500,000 common
share purchase warrants, exercisable at a price of $0.27 per common share of ViveRE for a period of two years
from issuance. Tier 3 Units will also be offered in amounts of $500,000 per Unit. Each Tier 3 Unit is comprised
of 2,083,333 common shares of ViveRE and 1,000,000 common share purchase warrants, exercisable at a price
of $0.27 per common share of ViveRE for a period of two years from issuance. The proceeds from this offering
will be used to fund the ATMJ Acquisition and for general working capital. The private placement financing is
subject to Exchange approval.
COVID-19
The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s operations as April 27, 2020 has been minimal. At April 1, 2020, the
Company’s portfolio of 243 rental units had less than 1% vacancy. None of the tenants requested deferral of their
April rent and all rents were collected in full. This reflects the demographic and quality of the Company’s resident
base. ViveRE’s priority at this time continues to be operating in a manner that promotes the safety and health of
our residents, staff, business partners and communities. The overall impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s
business will depend on a number of factors that are unknown at this time, including the duration of states of
emergency in the various jurisdictions where the Company has properties.
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